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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery
and diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment
portfolio including property investment and development
and other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in China. The Group has
full capabilities in jewellery design, direct stone sourcing,
stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold refining. The
management of the Group is known for its commitment to
quality, and its finished products are visible testaments to
that commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
polishing facilities in China. With around 900 skilled workers,
our facilities are best known for their quality and ability to
handle diamond cutting works on a wide range of products.
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Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP

Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the fiscal year 2010, the Group achieved a turnover
of HK$1,032 million (2009: HK$1,190 million). Profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$3.7
million (2009: HK$136 million) and earnings per share was
HKO.1 cent (2009: HK4.5 cent (after share subdivision)). If
excluding the Share-based compensation of HK$53 million,
the Group posted HK$56.7 million of profit attributable to
equity holders.

During the second half of 2009 and first half of 2010, it has
been a time of sluggish growth for the overall economy. The
aftermath and impacts of the financial crisis that took place
back in 2008 was still a looming overcast on international
business. The American and European markets were slowly
gaining their momentum after months of deteriorating
consumer sales. However, the recovery of the luxury and
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jewellery sector remains soft over a prolonged period. Given
the ongoing uncertainties and the progressive upturn, we
remain conservative as the market is still vulnerable due to
cautious consumer spending. Furthermore, the rising labor
costs and appreciation of the Renminbi present greater
pressure to the manufacturing sector. The Group continues
to implement various effective cost controls measured,
focuses on production efficiency and prudence in all
operation areas in order to counter the aforementioned
challenges.

In the current year of 2010, the rental income and changes
in fair value of investment properties of the Group has
decreased significantly due to the disposal of Continental
Diamond Plaza located at Hennessy Road completed in
October 2009. On the other hand, the development of the
Group'’s land sites situated at Nos. 236-242 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong is in good progress. The Shanghai 50%
jointly controlled entity, currently holds two parcels of land
located in Yangpu District area of Shanghai with a total land
area of approximately 18,101 sq.m.

In the recent years, the Group has been actively identifying
opportunities in diversifying its portfolio into suitable
investments. On 20 November 2009, the Group entered
into a conditional acquisition agreement for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Big Bonus Limited and its
subsidiaries, which are engaging in gold mining and
exploration activities at Hongzhuang in Henan Province,
the PRC (“Hongzhuang gold mine acquisition”), which was
approved by way of poll at the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting on 11 February 2010. In addition, on 25
February 2010, a shareholders agreement was entered into
with MinMetals Mining Corporation Limited regarding the
formation of a joint venture company with principal business
in trading of mineral ores. In June 2010, the Group has
entered into an acquisition agreement to acquire 18.09%
of the entire issued share capital of Macarthur Minerals
Limited (“MMS"). MMS is an Australian company listed
on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada with principal
activities in the exploration and development of an area with
significant prospective iron ore located in Western Australia.
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Upon completion of the Hongzhuang gold mine acquisition
and the MMS stake acquisitions, it will enable the Group
to capture the sustained growth in global demand of the
natural resources.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

While the financial tsunami is still unfavorably impacting
the markets in the United States and Europe, the pace of
economic recovery is not as robust as expected and a strong
rebound is unlikely to happen in the short term. Given such,
the Group expects the jewellery export business will still be
challenging in the coming year. However, the Group remains
optimistic and confident in combating the current economic
environment. With a more diversified portfolio, the Group
will strive to provide the best value for our shareholders.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2010, the Group had a moderate gearing
ratio of 0.03 (2009: 0.39), which is calculated on net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of bank and other borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Total cash and cash equivalents were
HK$153,940,000 (2009: HK$45,759,000) which were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar and
British Pound, while bank loans were HK$178,994,000
(2009: HK$682,896,000) which were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi and other borrowings
in respect of promissory note and amount due to
ultimate holding company were HK$7,877,000 (2009:
HK$42,000,000) which were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar. The increase in cash and cash equivalents and the
reduction in borrowings mainly contributes from the sales
proceeds of the disposal of the Continental Diamond Plaza
located at Hennessy Road, Hong Kong. These bank loans
are secured by first legal charges over the Group’s property
under development classified as investment property, certain
leasehold land and buildings, and corporate guarantees
executed by the Company.
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In line with the Group's prudent financial management, the
directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2010, the Group's property under
development classified as investment property, certain
leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate net
book/carrying value of HK$432,859,000 (2009:
HK$1,255,275,000) were pledged to certain banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in local Hong
Kong Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined on the
basis of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offering Rate or Prime
Rate and Renminbi fixed rate. There was no change to the
Group’s capital structure during the year ended 30 June
2010. In light of the current financial position of the Group
and provided there is no unforeseeable circumstance, the
management does not anticipate the need to change the
capital structure.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group employs a total of approximately 1,100
employees with the majority in the PRC. The Group
remunerates its employees largely based on the industrial
practice. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme on 13 July 2010, under which the Company may
grant options to eligible persons including directors and
employees. No share option was granted pursuant to the
scheme since its adoption.
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EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND
RELATED HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial risk
management and the market risk is kept to minimum. With
the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all transactions and the
borrowings of the Group are primarily denominated in US
Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi. The risk of foreign
exchange fluctuations is minimal. During the year, the Group
made use of the foreign exchange forward contract in order
to minimise the exchange rate risk as a result of fluctuation
in British Pound. Management will continue to monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will take appropriate action
when necessary. As of 30 June 2010, the Group has entered
into certain foreign exchange forward contract. Details are
set out in note 28 to the financial statements on page 148.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
shareholders for their trust and support.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 11 October 2010
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP, is the Chairman and
founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an executive Director of
the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. He is responsible for strategic planning,
corporate development and investment of the Group.
Dr. Chan has over 50 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He is currently the President of the Hong Kong
Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association; Appointed
Member of the University Court of The HK University of
Science & Technology; Member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the HKTDC; as well as a member
of other trade associations. In community, charitable and
political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent Honorary
Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association Ltd., and
Member of The Association of Chairmen of The Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed a committee
member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since 2003; and the Executive
Vice President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese Enterprise
Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, has been with the Group for
over 35 years and is responsible for marketing and corporate
policy development of the Group. She has over 35 years’
experience in jewellery design, product development,
production and marketing of the Group’s export business.
Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995.
She is responsible for retail operation and the business
administration functions in the Group. Ms. Chan graduated
from University of California, Berkeley with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics. Ms. Chan is a Graduate Gemologist
of the Gemological Institute of America. She is Charter
President of Zonta Club of Hong Kong Il, actively involved in
the Zonta Community. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles.



Annual Report 2010 4}

Directors and Senior Managements EENR SHREEAE

BREMKE RZZEZEZFHNAK
S8 BEASEMABHEE M5
HE EBRERLKRESH - R
R N4 KT8 2 Babson
College ' BH¥ERUKIEEE 4
B o HRMAREBRIEZER
RITRBIEE - REEBERARS
FFrEZWESRAEAKEL
AREgEEgrIgR WHES
—EREIXEFEZESWNTELZER
gRlgXE BAREEEL R
3

FHITES

BERFEE R_Z-—TFNAL
FEZERRERINITESZ - &
FER—NN—FREHEAELE
BB EEMAIARR— A\ FER
BRIARPLIPHEREIRES
L8 - EAEZBELRNE
17 R—=NAN—FMAFBERITH
MO1T - BWR—NAN=FHREAR
BlAREE MR —hARFZ AR
IR BERITHONE D 1T R R E
2 HE-AANFILE BEER
—NAANFARRBHTE - X HE
RERITARIIDITITR EECT
T=FIL - BEEER_TT=FN
AXRB|EE  HETRBERIMAE
fRA R E F AR IR B IRTT
HBEE BE_TTLFI-

BRERRMA—EREEHARS
FRERAR([BRFT]) Lz A E]
ERNEREBRAR (RO :
00472 > FITEBRENFEKREARR
NA]) ZBIIFMITES - BIMEE
—RERBE R P LT 2 ARIE ILRER
SEARRR (MR : 00663 -
e A e T (B ZERBRA
A 2B IFITES -

Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000. He
is responsible for all sales and marketing activities as well
as business development and investments of the Group.
Mr. Chan graduated from Babson College in Boston,
Massachusetts with a Bachelor of Science double major in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance. He has worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry prior to joining the
Group. Mr. Chan is currently the Chairman of Entrepreneurs’
Organization Hong Kong, and the Vice Chairman of The
Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association. He
is also the Founding Chairman of the Youth Chapter of the
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. Mr. Chan is the son
of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cao Kuangyu, was appointed as a non-executive
director on 7 April 2010. Mr. Cao obtained his Bachelor of
Arts in Economics from the University of Hunan in 1981 and
Master of Science in Financial Management with the School
of Oriental and African Studies, University of London in
1998. Mr. Cao commenced a career in banking and joined
the Bank of China, Hunan Branch in 1981. He was promoted
to Deputy General Manager in 1993 and in February 1996,
he was transferred to the Singapore Branch of Bank of China
as Deputy General Manager until 1999. Mr. Cao returned
to China in September 1999 and joined the Citic Bank,
Shenzhen Branch as President until 2003. Mr. Cao came to
Hong Kong in September 2003 as Managing Director, Head
of Global Investment Banking Division, BOCI Asia Limited
until 2007.

Mr. Cao is an independent non-executive director of JLF
Investment Company Limited (formerly known as Applied
(China) Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 00472).
He is also an independent non-executive director of King
Stone Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Yun Sky
Chemical (International) Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00663).
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Mr. Fang Gang, was appointed as a non-executive director
on 15 July 2010. Mr. Fang obtained his Bachelor’s Degree
from the School of Engineering, Xi‘an Jiaotong University in
1982 and a Master's Degree from the School of Engineering,
Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1988. He has over 20 years
experience in the metallurgical industry. In 1988, Mr. Fang
joined China Minmetals Corporation (“Minmetals”). From
1995 to 1999, Mr. Fang was with Minmetals Australia Pty
Limited. Commencing July 1999, Mr. Fang is the General
Manager of China National Metal Products Co Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Minmetals.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 30 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he is also actively involved in the community
services for the community of Hong Kong and several
advisory bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 27 years
and subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in the year 2007.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years' experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a founder and director of various logistic companies. Mr.
Chan is a director of a private company engaging in logistics
and forwarding.
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Mr. Sze, Irons, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze graduated
with a Bachelor’s degree in Science from University of
Wisconsin, United States in 1985. Mr. Sze has extensive
experience in investment and corporate management and is
currently the chief executive officer and managing director
of a private company, Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited,
and holds directorship in various private companies. Mr.
Sze is an executive member of the Beijing Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also
the vice-chairman of Hunan Province Youth Federation and
the vice president of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association
of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Council and
Court of Lingnan University (2008 to 2011) and elected as a
member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2007 to 2012).

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of the Board on 7 April 2010. Mr. Cheung
is currently a part-time tutor at the Open University of Hong
Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in accounting,
finance and administration and has held senior positions
in multinational companies. He obtained his MBA from
University of Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

From March 2004 to November 2007, Mr. Cheung was
an executive director of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and was also
the Chief Financial Officer from March 2007 to February
2008. He was an independent director of LJ International
Inc., a company listed on NASDAQ from June 2007 to
October 2007. From January 2001 to December 2003, Mr.
Cheung was a director of e-Lux (Hong Kong) Limited, a
subsidiary of e-Lux Corporation, in charge of value-added
telecommunications services in Hong Kong, Taiwan and
China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Gwon Hing, Edward, joined in 1998, is
currently the General Manager of Continental Jewellery
(Mfg,) Limited. Mr. Wong has over 30 years experience
in manufacturing, sales marketing and management in
jewellery industry. Mr. Wong is responsible for overall
management of Group'’s jewellery business.

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric, joined in 1987, is the Head
of Group operations. He has over 20 years of experience
in application system implementation and supply chain
management in the jewellery industry. Currently, he oversees
the daily operation, administration and human resources
of the Group. He also in charge the implementation of ISO
Quality Management System.

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined in 1976, is the Head
of Operation of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr.
Lee has over 20 years of experience in managing jewellery
factories. He has extensive knowledge in all production
aspects as well as in logistic management. Currently, he
oversees the daily operations of the jewellery factories in
China.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the accounting year ended 30 June
2010, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1
and A.4.1 which are explained in the following relevant
paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY’S PRACTICES

A.1. Board of Directors

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the issuer and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the issuer by directing and supervising the issuer’s
affairs. Directors should take decisions objectively in the
interests of the issuer.
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Regular Board meetings are held at approximately quarterly
intervals. In addition, special Board meetings will be held
when necessary. Attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings and other board committee meetings during
financial year ended 30 June 2010 are as follows:

EERAIAT -
SRR BT
Meetings Attended / Held
ENEEE FMEES
EZgeR =f =
Meetings of
Board Meetings of Remuneration
) Director Meeting  Audit Committee Committee
HITEE Executive Directors
PREEZEL - BBS * AF4HL Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP 8/3 - -
B/t Ms Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 8/8 - il
BREBL T Ms Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 6/3 - -
BRIEN & Mr Chan Wai Lap, Victor 7/8 - -
HHTEE Non-executive Directors
REEEE Mr Chu Wai Kok* 2/4 12 -
ER T Mr Cao Kuangyu** 12 - -
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BHLE S Mr Wong Kai Cheong*** 4/4 22 -
RIEARSLHE  BBS * MBE * Mr Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP 4/8 212 11
N
BRI 5 Mr Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 5/8 212 11
MRIETE Mr Sze Irons 4/8 212 1/1
RAEIB L A xxH Mr Cheung Chi Fai, Frank**** 172 - -
* KEBRAENR-_Z-ZTFZA=1H *  Mr Chu Wai Kok, resigned from Non-executive Director and
BEEINTEERTHLAEEZE ceased to be a member of Audit Committee with effect from 30
BEEgKE - March 2010.
o BRTEAER_ZT-TFHALRE ** Mr Cao Kuangyu, was appointed as Non-executive Director on 7
LEREAITES - April 2010.

o BMEKER B -BEZA=TA
ERHEBTINTEE R T B IS

ZEZEEGKE

kR EEEEN T E-TFMACEE
RERBUFNTEZREREZES

ME

effect from 30 March 2010.

2010.

*** Mr Wong Kai Cheong resigned from Independent Non-executive
Director and ceased to be a member of Audit Committee with

****Mr Cheung Chi Fai, Frank was appointed as Independent Non-
executive Director and member of Audit Committee on 7 April
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Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are duly kept and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees have recorded
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees, decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the Board are sent to
all Directors for their comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be presented at such board
meeting.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the issuer’s business. There should be a
clear division of these responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is
not concentrated in any one individual.

Code Provision A.2.1. provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles is the Chairman of the
Company. Dr. Chan oversees the direction of the Group and
also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that all Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley is the Managing Director of the
Company. She is responsible for day-to-day management
and the marketing activities of the Group. Ms Cheng is the
wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Although the Company does not have a post of chief
executive officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance
of power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the issuer. The board should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The
board should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. Non-executive directors should be of
sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry weight.

As at 30 June 2010, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan Sing Chuk Charles, Ms. Cheng
Siu Yin Shirley, Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai
Lap Victor; one Non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Cao
Kuangyu and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek,
Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All Directors
are expressly identified by categories of Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors, in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of Directors of the Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley and
Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor is the
daughter and son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng.
Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki is sister of Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 14 to 18 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
gualifications among members of the Board.
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A.4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors to the
board. There should be plans in place for orderly succession
for appointments to the board. All directors should be
subject to re-election at regular intervals. An issuer must
explain the reasons for the resignation or removal of any
director.

Code Provision A.4.1.provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with articles 115(A) and 115(D)
of the articles of association of the Company. The Board
considers that the deviation from Code Provision A.4.1.
is not material as Non-executive Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in view of the small
number of total directors of the Company, the Directors will
consider to adopt the Code Provision should the number of
Directors increase substantially.

The Directors consider that it is not necessary to have a
nomination committee for the time being. The Directors will
review this from time to time and will establish a nomination
should there be a need.

A proposal for the appointment of a new Director will be
considered and reviewed by the Board. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director should also meet
the independent criteria set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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A.5. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a director of an issuer and of the conduct, business activities
and development of that issuer. Given the essential unitary
nature of the board, non-executive directors have the same
duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive
directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of
his/her responsibilities under statue and common law, the
Listing Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the business governance policies of the Group. The
Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, business and strategic development of the
Group to enable the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the audit and remuneration committees. The Company has
received written confirmation from all the Independent Non-
executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.
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Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have
confirmed, following enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in Model
Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2010.

A.6. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in such form and of such quality
as will enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities as directors of an
issuer.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions.
The information supplied must be complete and reliable.
The Board and each Director shall have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose information relating to its directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters.
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for
setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for
fixing the remuneration packages for all directors. Level
of remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain
the directors needed to run the company successfully, but
companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for
this purpose. No director should be involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.3 (a) to (f) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the Company’s remuneration
policy, and for the formulation and review of the specific
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
executives of the Group.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr.
Sze Irons.

The meeting of the Committee is held at least once a year or
when necessary. All members attended the meeting of the
Committee held on 11 October 2010.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2010 are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to professional advice, to
discharge its duties if considered necessary.
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C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance
position and prospects.

Management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing financial statements of each financial
period, which shall give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2010, the Directors have made judgements
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 47 to
49 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2010.

The Board'’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.
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C.2. Internal Controls

The Board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholder’s
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness through the
Audit Committee. The Board requires management to
establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls.
Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational compliance controls and risk management
functions had been done on an ad hoc basis. Review of
internal controls on different systems will be done on a
systematic rotational basis based on the risk assessments of
the operations and controls.

C.3. Audit Committee

The Board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the company’s auditors.
The audit committee established by an issuer pursuant to the
Listing Rules should have clear terms of reference.
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The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The Audit Committee has
made available its terms of reference, explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the Board.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

As issues raised by the Committee have been addressed
by management. The work and findings of the Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
brought to the attention of management and the Board
were of sufficient importance to require disclosure in the
Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s proposal for
the re-appointment of Grant Thornton as the Company’s
independent auditors for 2011.

For the year ended 30 June 2010, save as the auditors’
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statement, the Group has paid HK$652,000 in relation to the
non-audit services (including taxation and other reporting
services).
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Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are sent to all members of the
Committee for their comments and record respectively, in
both cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditors.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditors, to discharge its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to the board for its decision. The board
should give clear directions to management as to the matters
that must be approved by the board before decisions are
made on behalf of the issuer.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group'’s business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of Matters Reserved
to the Board for Decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees’
authority and duties.

Apart from Audit Committee (particulars are disclosed
under C.3) and Remuneration Committee (particulars
are disclosed under B.1), there are no other standing
board committees established by the Board. Where board
committees are established to deal with matters, the Board
shall prescribe sufficiently clear terms of reference to enable
such Committees to discharge their functions properly. The
terms of reference of board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation.

At the 2009 Annual General Meeting, a separate resolution
was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-elections of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees shall attend the 2010 Annual
General Meeting to answer questions of shareholders.
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E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should regularly inform shareholders of the
procedure for voting by poll and ensure compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting will
be taken by poll pursuant to the requirement under Rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules.

The chairman of the Annual General Meeting will explain
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the
commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

The Company will engage Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Ltd to be the scrutineer and ensure the
votes are properly counted.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the
poll results will be published on the websites of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and at the website
www.equitynet.com.hk/hk513 on the business day
following the Annual General Meeting.
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The Chairman of a meeting shall at the commencement of
the meeting ensure that an explanation is provided to the
shareholders in relation to:

1. the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders;
and

2. the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then
answer any questions from shareholders whenever
voting by way of a poll is required.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them confirmed that, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2010, they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2010 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 50 to 190.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share (Before
Share Subdivision) was declared on Wednesday, 10 March
2010 and paid on Wednesday, 14 April 2010. The directors
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.001
per ordinary share in respect of the year, to shareholders on
the register of members on Thursday, 25 November 2010.
The final dividend will be paid on or about Wednesday,
8 December 2010. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in the investment property of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY

Details of the principal property held for investment purposes
are set out on page 191 of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 June 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, as computed in accordance with Section
79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$217,161,000, of which HK$3,128,000 has been
proposed as final dividend for the year.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
192.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$229,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 62% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 35%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 36% and 66%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

As far as the directors of the Company are aware, neither
the directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Non-executive directors:
Chu Wai Kok

(resigned on 30 March 2010)
Cao Kuangyu

(appointed on 7 April 2010)
Fang Gang

(appointed on 15 July 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Kai Cheong
(Resigned on 30 March 2010)
Yu Shiu Tin, Paul
Chan Ping Kuen, Derek
Sze Irons
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank
(appointed on 7 April 2010)

In accordance with Articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles
of Association, Ms Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley and Mr. Chan Ping
Kuen, Derek shall retire from office by rotation and both
of them are eligible for re-election at the annual general
meeting.

According to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, any
director appointed by the Board either to fill casual vacancy
or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Cao Kuangyu, Mr. Fang Gang and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai,
Frank shall hold office only until the Annual General Meeting
and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Each of the four independent non-executive directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) concerning
his independence. The Board considers each of the four
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to
18 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles has a service contract with the
Company for an indefinite period, which may be terminated
by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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(i) ERREESE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide eligible
persons with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage eligible persons to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. The Scheme will provide the Company with flexible
means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible persons.
The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten years.

The Board may in its discretion, invite any following eligible
person to take up the options to subscribe for shares of the
Company.

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company;
any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who, as
determined by the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the
Group;

(i) any Invested Entity
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten (10) business days from the offer
date. Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the company as consideration for the grant. The
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the adoption date; or (ii) 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. The total number
of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the share capital of the
Company then in issue unless approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and
not be more than ten (10) years from the offer date. No
share option was granted pursuant to the Scheme since its
adoption.
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EERS Name of Director

BRE= Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code") were as set out below:

YN EARTRERT
SREEEBTZEER RABDL

Number of ordinary shares of Percentage of

HK$0.01 each in the Company the Company'’s

B ARz ARER RikER issued share
Personal interest Corporate interest ~ Family interest capital
- 5,201,894,033 - 166.285%

(FEE1) (Note 1)
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EEps Name of Director
/)3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
BRI Chan Ping Kuen, Derek
BREY Chan Wai Lap, Victor

EE s Name of Director
BREZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

B/

B

Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley

PHEE1 : S (i) RIE B8/ R 22
TE2EHE 2 — KA Tamar
Investments Group Limited
([Tamar Investments])) # A&
5,063,395,220 8 ik 15 + I B 1F
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)
LN ERDRAE T
BEREEIBTZERR RAEBDL
Number of ordinary shares of Percentage of
HK$0.01 each in the Company the Company'’s
B AR ARER e issued share
Personal interest Corporate interest ~ Family interest capital
- 5,201,894,033 - 166.285%
(MFET) (Note 1)

200,000 - - 0.006%
- - 2,700,000 0.086%

(fH3E2) (Note 2)

ERE

(£5)

NEER
B AR Debenture FikER
Personal (principal amount) Family
interest Corporate interest Interest
- HK$383.17 million -

(H3¥3) (Note 3)
- HK$383.17 million -

(F35E3) (Note 3)
Note 1:Such interests are held as to (i) 5,063,395,220 shares by Tamar

Investments Group Limited (“Tamar Investments”), which is a
company wholly owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley and include interests in the consideration Shares and
the conversion Shares to be issued under the Hongzhuang
Gold Mine Acquisition as defined and disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 25 June 2010 (the “Circular”); and (ii)
138,498,813 Shares by Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous
Key”), which is a company wholly owned by Dr. Chan and
represent interest in the Conversion Shares (as defined and
disclosed in the Circular) under the Famous Key Convertible
Note (as defined and disclosed in the Circular). Dr. Chan and
Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, both being Directors, are the
directors of Tamar Investments.
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ZHDRER ()

BfsE2 : 522,700,000 % f% (R TTE =
BRIZSI S 2 FL BB 4%
75 °

FEE 3 - 32 Z M2 | () Tamar Investments
LARIRAT S S RIS BIE AT 31T
2 N4 8 /325,000,000 7T 2
AR SRIEREE ¢ K (i) Famous
Key LAZK 4 %8 58,170,000 78 7T 2
Famous Key J IR FEHIFAH ©
Tamar Investments F1 FR 18 1+ & 56
N2 EHER (AMTEE 1 PTR
i) - M Famous Key BfEE L2
EEA (KT ATiRi) -

Br EXPTEESN  WEEE - #
BEEIAWREIHEATRART
A TR ABABREES KR
GRPIE+RME=B R+ IFEAEH
ARG Fr & Fo it 2 B ~ AR RAAX
M REFTEEEA KB - 25
SHEMERIER - HIRIBREST
AIZEBAA R A R B X TR B D
HERD REFFHEAEZEA R
&~ AEISEMERNIER -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Note 2: The 2,700,000 Shares were held by Ms. Kwok Ching Yan,
Louisa, who is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, an
executive Director.

Note 3: Such interest is held by (i) Tamar Investments in the convertible
note in HK$325 million principal amount to be issued under
the Hongzhuang Gold Mine Acquisition; and (ii) Famous Key in
the Famous Key Convertible Note in HK$58.17 million principal
amount. Tamar Investments is wholly owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng
Siu Yin, Shirley as referred to in Note 1 and Famous Key is wholly owned
by Dr. Chan as referred to in Note 1.

Except as disclosed above, at the reporting date, none of
the directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate granted to any
director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire such
rights in any other corporate.
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REALXS

BEALRS (TEBREETRS)
ZABEHNMBEREMEL = -
B AREEIRE

RIBARRR A AFESZER MR
BESMAAN - RAREAH - A

AIEBITIRAEBEE L 25% HAR
ERFE -
ENEEE

ARRBERE EMARR 2 REKL
BZZBE  UEHIERAKE
2R M ARREEEE o
ENLRECCHRAKREMEAZE
AR R EE - BHEENMAE
EREFFETEN YRR
FEYHHRE - BEAREAH
BEZZEemARAINEIE L IFH
TTESHEK -

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2010, no person, other than Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles and Madam Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in note
43 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established
in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Best
Practice, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee has discussed
the Group’s accounting policies and basis adopted, the
financial and internal control process of the Group and has
reviewed the interim and annual financial statements. As of
the date of this report, the audit committee comprises the
four independent non-executive directors of the Company.
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%S ED AUDITORS

RABZHAMEOESTRIITE S The Company’s auditors, Grant Thornton retire and, being
R EERBEEEE - eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

EEEDMm For and on behalf of the Board

TE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

BREEZE Chairman

B —T-ZETF+A+—AH Hong Kong, 11 October 2010
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o Grant Thornton

&

ENRERERRD R
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2 AL

SEtEIfTEERTIRERTRE
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Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the members of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out
on pages 50 to 190, which comprise the consolidated and
the Company statements of financial position as at 30 June
2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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EYPHRETAERERRA
R - ERHEZ SRR - ZEE
=) = UNGIE T E NS R )
B SRR M A BB S)  ARFHE
EOEZRER - BXIERHRFN
NEPEH O BRERRER - BZN
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SETRITTARGE - RAIPAESHE
BB RMEE AR MNER
BRIRHERE -

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30 June 2010 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
6th Floor, Nexxus Building
41, Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

11 October 2010
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2010 2009
ez FET FEr
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
g Revenue 6 1,031,708 1,189,622
SHEMAR Cost of sales (930,948) (1,061,343)
EH Gross profit 100,760 128,279
SHE R D HHMA Selling and distribution costs (18,097) (21,465)
THRER Administrative expenses (72,825) (111,890)
H /&5 Other operating expenses (2,579) (17,446)
RENENTEZKE Changes in fair value of
investment properties 6,608 101,080
PARR AR A 5 R 2 B Share-based compensation 36 (53,008) -
RELEEK 2 (F18) /&5 (Loss)/Profit from operations (39,141) 78,558
BEMA Finance costs 7 (2,231) (12,187)
g NG Share of results of associates (260) (701)
eI HRIEH TSRS Share of results of jointly controlled entities 52,821 5,472
BRETSHL AR A Profit before income tax 8 11,189 71,142
Fris®i (%), /% Income tax (expense)/credit 9 (7,684) 64,807
REERER Profit for the year 3,505 135,949
Hib2mEWE Other comprehensive income
NS e REE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ZATEEE) financial assets (1,518) (1,203)
BMEBINETS - BEE R Exchange difference on translation
WS -Gl of foreign operations, associates
and jointly controlled entities 5,635 5,330
FNEMEEWE - B3EEFH  Other comprehensive income for the year,
BB R IE including reclassification adjustments
and net of tax 4,117 4,127
FREMBREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 7,622 140,076
FEAEE RS - Profit for the year attributable to:
IN/NETLZEDN Owners of the Company 10 3,722 135,939
JEIE i Non-controlling interests (217) 10
REERR Profit for the year 3,505 135,949
FEiE 2 E SR Total comprehensive income attributable to:
NN ZEDN Owners of the Company 7,839 140,066
JEFE R Non-controlling interests (217) 10
7,622 140,076
FRADBFEE AEML Earnings per share for profit attributable
n k2 BREF to the owners of the Company during
(ZZ22NF : KED) the year (2009: restated) 12
— &R — Basic HKO.1 centi&{ll  HK4.5 cent /Sl
— s - Diluted HKO.1 cent /&l N/A T
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2010 2009
KiaE FET FET
Notes HK$000 HK$’000
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FREEE Non-current assets
M - B NKRE Property, plant and equipment 15 45,793 435,836
TS 1+ b A Leasehold land/Land use rights 16 7,467 8,883
"B Investment property 17 410,000 -
EA%%%’D\ Bl 2w Interests in associates 19 2,821 3,051
AL EE S E RS 2 Interests in jointly controlled entities 20 320,466 216,382
AT EZCRIEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 28,790 12,974
= BB UGRIR Long term receivables 22 = =
FEFIBE B Deferred tax assets 33 9,217 9,217
824,554 686,343
RENE=E Current assets
FE Inventories 23 275,961 295,492
B 5 EWGRIA Trade receivables 24 113,375 106,942
TERFUIR « e RHAMEWFIE  Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 19,452 29,177
R HEARE WRIE 2 BIERER - Current portion of long term
receivables 22 - 1,305
NAFEFABRCREE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 25 11,517 10,324
JE U Bt 8 N B FUIE Due from associates 19 202 330
FEW —FE 2k H? il B Due from a jointly controlled entity 20 110 =
BHe MReER Cash and cash equivalents 26 153,940 45,759
574,557 489,329
IERHEHEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 34 = 838,000
574,557 1,327,329
piEI=RE Current liabilities
B Z N FIA Trade payables 27 (147,645) (157,142)
HEfb R IE&FE.#EEH Other payables and accruals (44,920) (62,883)
PTESRT A Derivative financial instruments 28 (498) (170)
T A Provision for tax (10,180) (11,623)
iR NEIE O Due to associates 19 (335) (288)
e — R FE Rl %'J,\ BB RIE Due to a jointly controlled entity 20 (5) =
IRITEHR—EHEH Bank loans, secured 29 (167,500) (141,633)
(371,083) (373,739)
B ARERE B E Liabilities associated with assets
EHEEE classified as held for sale 34 = (9,628)
(371,083) (383,367)
TBEEFE Net current assets 203,474 943,962
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2010 2009
it FBET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BEERRDER Total assets less current liabilities 1,028,028 1,630,305
ERBARB Non-current liabilities
IR HIERE R Loans from non-controlling interests 30 (1,125) (1,125)
IRITER—FEIF Bank loans, secured 29 (11,494) (541,263)
B Promissory note 31 = (42,000)
FES S AR AR A Bl 5RIE Due to ultimate holding company 32 (7,877) =
FEEFIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 33 (1,106) (16)
(21,602) (584,404)
EEFE Net assets 1,006,426 1,045,901
fEm EQUITY
KATEE A Equity attributable to the
bR owners of the Company
BEITARA Issued capital 35 31,283 31,283
i Reserves 37 970,958 916,367
BRAR S Proposed dividends 3,128 96,977
1,005,369 1,044,627
FEIEHIRE R Non-controlling interests 1,057 1,274
HRER Total equity 1,006,426 1,045,901
BREEZE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EE Director
BB/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EE Director
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2010 2009
k3 FETT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FERBEE Non-current assets
RB AR Z Interests in subsidiaries 18 626,399 617,916
RIS N T 2 RS Interests in associates 19 = -
=B UGRIR Long term receivables 22 = -
626,399 617,916
RBEE Current assets
TENFRIE ~ e REAM Prepayments, deposits
FEWRIE and other receivables 178 73
REAEUGRIA 2 Current portion of long
BIEAER > term receivables 22 = 958
FEUSHT B R B FRIE Due from subsidiaries 18 141,317 134,525
JE Uy — It & A R RR Due from an associate 19 8 8
Re R FHE Cash and cash equivalents 26 83 85
141,586 135,649
piEI=RE Current liabilities
Hib e RIB R ETE R Other payables and accruals (1,439) (879)
TRIBE R Provision for tax (745) (1,064)
(2,184) (1,943)
REEEFE Net current assets 139,402 133,706
EEFE Net assets 765,801 751,622
gy EQUITY
BEITIRA Issued capital 35 31,283 31,283
& Reserves 37 731,390 623,362
B A% S Proposed dividends 3,128 96,977
E=B% Total equity 765,801 751,622
PR EEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EBE Director
BB/ 3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EF Director
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2010 2009
et FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
BRETE AR Profit before income tax 11,189 71,142
ERTIEERE - Adjustments for:
AR Finance costs 2,231 12,187
il NS Share of results of associates 260 701
SR Share of results of jointly controlled entities (52,821) (5,472)
PARRTD AR 2 S Share-based compensation 53,008 =
e Depreciation 6,706 8,349
ME T3,/ T fF s s Amortisation of leasehold land/land use rights 214 236
2D Bad debts recovery (1,469) =
FEEE Write back against inventories - (4,991)
KUK AR Provision for long term receivables - 8,449
B SR IER G Provision for trade receivables 668 3,205
mE - BE RFE R ERE Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 2,261
HEBRELH,/ TinfFAENE  Gain on disposal of leasehold land/land use rights (616) =
HENE  BEK (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,

Stz (k%) BiR plant and equipment @77) 65
HEHBARZER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries = 23
KEMELTFEHE Changes in fair value of investment properties (6,608) (101,080)
TSI AENTERSE Fair value loss on derivative financial instruments 443 1,485

EEESEER Operating profit/(loss) before
e/ (B1) working capital changes 12,728 (3,440)

FERD Decrease in inventories 19,531 48,072

& S s (gm),/ (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (5,632) 58,598

ARHIE  REREM Decrease in prepayments, deposits

WG IRR D and other receivables 4,671 13,891

WATEG A BR e MEE (Increase)/Decrease in financial assets at fair value

($&m),/ b through profit or loss (1,193) 2,439
AR\ B) 2 K gR Decrease/(Increase) in balances

WD/ (Em) with associates 175 (87)
ELARERIE R 2 A0 (Increase)/Decrease in balances with jointly

(m),/md controlled entities (105) 117
B 5 REMERNFER Decrease in trade and other

[EEr 2R payables and accruals (37,088) (16,453)
ITHE SR T A Increase in derivative financial instruments (115) (1,315)
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‘ 2010 2009
et FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
we () EE2BE Cash (used in)/generated from operations (7,028) 101,822
BAFIS Interest paid (6,562) (16,923)
BRRE Dividend paid (100,105) (8,220)
BERAEBFIGEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (8,037) (7,071)
MR (FIR) /EE 23R & %8 Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (121,732) 69,608
RETHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
REME - BER&E Additions to property, plant and equipment (4,018) (5,966)
NERENFE Additions to investment property (7,672) =
HENE « BEREE Proceeds from disposal of
PS5 R property, plant and equipment 1,827 3
HME—BREMEMEHE Proceeds from disposal of an investment property 838,000 15,480
BEHHESHEE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (17,334) -
HERBAR (FHRES Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash
BekHe%EHE) and cash equivalents disposed of) 4 = (2,000)
WENBAR (IGREE Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash
BeKHe%H) and cash equivalents acquired) 41 = (130,053)
HERELSH,/ T RE Proceeds from disposal of
PSR leasehold land/land use rights 1,818 =
BB SIR Receipt of long term receivables 1,305 1,307
BB M —E A RE B Proceeds from deregistration of a jointly
{5 5IE controlled entity 498 =
MR —RXREHIEB2ZE  Increase in investment in a jointly controlled entity (5) -
EMERT—MAREHEE  Increasein loan to a jointly controlled entity (49,500) (76,000)
BEEHEL/(FTA)HEFE  Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 764,919 (197,229)
RETHRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BRIER A RIEHK Advance from ultimate holding company 7,877 =
FERITER New bank loans = 65,000
BREITER Repayment of bank loans (503,902) (12,883)
BRERIER Repayment of promissory note (42,000) (8,000)
BEEH (FE)/ELHEFHE  Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (538,025) 44,117
RERBESE M/ Net increase/(decrease) in
ORiD) B3 cash and cash equivalents 105,162 (83,504)
FICRERREEH Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 45,759 128,868
INEEEGE) 2 HE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 3,019 395
ER7BRERREET Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 153,940 45,759
RERBEEHERDIN Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
Be RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 84,940 45,759
REEHER Short term time deposits 69,000 =

55
153,940 45,759 -
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BE—_Z—ZFA=tHILFE
FhtlEes  EeiE
Non-
FAREBNERER controling Total
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company Interests equity
Rk} kA FIAE KR RE
Rx &EE BR  AthE Bh 2B REEN  RERS 5t
Share Non- Exchange  Investment
Issued  premium  distributable Other  fluctuation ~ revaluation  Retained  Proposed
capital  account  resenve reserve reserve Teserve profits~ dividends Total
FEr  TEr TRt TEr TEr FEr FEr TEr T TR TEr
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000
RZSS/\ELA-B2E#:  Balanceat 1 uly 2008 27980 1583713 273,606 (8,779) 5,046 184 414461 4197 876,708 1865 878573
WERBATRETZRG Shares issued upon acquistion
(Hmt-) of subsidares note 41) 333 32310 361 3673
HERBAR Disposal of subsidaries - - - - - - - - - (201) (201)
BfikHEGRS Dividend paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (400) (400)
T3\ ExRE Payment of final 2008 dividend - - - - - - R /IR [ - ()
R\ ERIAHRE Additional 2008 final dividend - - - - - - (495) - (495) - (495)
ZEENETERE Interim 2009 dividend = = = = = = (3129) - (3.129) - (3,128)
EFENIRS Transaction with owners 333 33 - - - - Be3) @) 283 (o 27
TEERT Profit for the year - - - - - - 1399 - 19 10 135949
Afp2EhE Other comprehensive income
FEBINEBLT BEAFAR  Bichange differences on tranglation
KRBHER RS of the finandialstatemens
FELZERZR of foreign subsidiaies, associates
and jointly controlled entities - - - - 5330 - - - 5330 - 5330
THHECHAR Changein fair value of
ATEYE avallable-for-sale financial assets - - - - - (1203 - - (103 - (1m)
SENGER Total comprehensive income - - - - 530 (1203 135939 - 140066 10 140076
RECSENERERER Proposed final 2009 dividend
ke and special dividend - - - - - - 989 %9 - - -
WIERNERA=THZES  Balance at 30 June 2009 31283 190743 273606* (8779 10376 B21%  449800¢ 96977 1,044,627 1,274 1,045,901
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FENEE RREE

Non-
KATER RS controlling ~~ Total
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company interests ~ equity
B8 Rt AREE  TUAK EXRe K&
Be  #BRE  RE  BR RERE  BR EMRE REW HRE &
Share Non- Exchange Investment

Issued ~ premium  Warrant distributable ~ Other fluctuation revaluation  Retained  Proposed

capital  account  reseve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits dividends  Total

fir fh FE TE TE B B T T FET FE T
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000

NoEENECA-AER: Balance at 1 July 2009 3128 19078 M6 8719 10376 61 49800 %6977 1044627 1204 1045901

RHZSENERERE Payment of 2009 firel and

REhIkRE pecial diidend - - - - - - - - (69m)  (%9M) - (%697)
Z5-TEqHRE Interim 2010 dividend - - - - - - - (3128) - (3,128) - (3,128
R AR 2B Recogniion o share-based compensation - - 53008 - - - - - - B - 53008
BEEAIRS Transacton with owners - - 5008 - - - - (B8 O69T)  (4n09) - (409
TERRA Proft for the year - - - - - - - -3 Q) 350
A2 ENE Other comprehensive income
TEINBAR  BENER  Exchange differences on ransation
HRBHERAHRE of the fiancil tatemens o freign
FEEZEN AR subsicares, associates and oitly
controlle entities - - - - - 5,635 - - - 5,63 - 5,635
TiES AR Change in fir vlue of avalable-orsale
AFEZHE finandal asses - - - - - - (151 - - (151 - (1519
AYEER Total comprehensive income - - - - - 5E5 (1518 3m - 18 [137) 7))
RE-F-3ERERE Proposed final 2010 dividend - - - - - - N ¢/ X - - -
HEE-ZERBZTRZEH Balanceat30une 2010 3083 100743 S3008 23606t (8719 16011 (89N M2e6* 308 1005369 1057 1006426
* ZERBROEGE VSRR TP 245 @ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
4 % 1%970,958,0008 L (ZZE T NF ¢ HK$970,958,000 (2009: HK$916,367,000) in the consolidated statement

916,367,000/ 7T) ° of financial position.
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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong.
The address of its registered office is Flats M & N, 1st Floor,
Kaiser Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the "Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
jewellery and diamonds

Property investment
- Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Company Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements on pages 50 to 190 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective terms include all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
("Int") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2010
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 11
October 2010.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July 2009:

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

HKFRS 8

Various

Presentation of Financial
Statements

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or an Associate

Share-based Payment — Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations

Business Combinations

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2008

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new HKFRSs
had no material impact on how the results and financial
position for the current and prior periods have been

prepared and presented.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

The adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) makes certain
changes to the format and titles of the primary financial
statements and to the presentation of some items within
these statements. A third statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period
is required when an entity applies an accounting policy
retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of
items in its financial statements or when it reclassifies items
in its financial statements. It also gives rise to additional
disclosures.

The measurement and recognition of the Group’s assets,
liabilities, income and expenses are unchanged. However,
some items that were recognised directly in equity are now
recognised in other comprehensive income. HKAS 1 affects
the presentation of owner changes in equity and introduces
a 'Statement of comprehensive income’. Comparatives
have been restated to conform with the revised standard.
The Group has applied changes to its accounting policies
on presentation of financial statements and segment
reporting retrospectively. However, the changes to the
comparatives have not affected the consolidated or the
Company’s statement of financial position at 1 July 2008
and accordingly the third statement of financial position as
at 1 July 2008 is not presented.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (Revised 2008)

The revised standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and introduces changes
to the accounting requirements for the loss of control
of a subsidiary and for changes in the Group’s interest
in subsidiaries. Total comprehensive income must be
attributed to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. The
adoption of the aforesaid revised standard does not have a
material effect on the Group's financial statements.
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s RIS REETE 2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

HKFRSs (continued)

HKAS 27 (Amendment) Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or an Associate

The amendment requires the investor to recognise dividends
from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate in
profit or loss irrespective the distributions are out of the
investee’s pre-acquisition or post-acquisition reserves. In
prior years, the Company recognised dividends out of pre-
acquisition reserves as a recovery of its investment in the
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entity or associates (i.e. a
reduction of the cost of investment). Only dividends out
of post-acquisition reserves were recognised as income in
profit or loss.

Under the new accounting policy, if the dividend
distribution is excessive, the investment would be tested for
impairment according to the Company’s accounting policy
on impairment of non-financial assets.

The new accounting policy has been applied prospectively
as required by these amendments to HKAS 27 and therefore
no comparatives have been restated.

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations (Revised 2008)

The standard is applicable in reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 and will be applied prospectively. The
new standard still requires the use of the purchase method
(now renamed the acquisition method) but introduces
material changes to the recognition and measurement of
consideration transferred and the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities, and the measurement of non-
controlling interests (previously known as minority interest)
in the acquiree.
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HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

The amendments require additional disclosures for
financial instruments which are measured at fair value
in the statement of financial position. These fair value
measurements are categorised into a three-level fair value
hierachy, which reflects the extent of observable market
data used in making the measurements. In addition,
the maturity analysis for derivative financial liabilities
is disclosed separately and should show remaining
contractual maturities for those derivatives where this
information is essential for an understanding of the timing
of the cash flows. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions in the amendments and has not
provided comparative information in respect of the new
requirements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

The adoption of HKFRS 8 has not affected the identified
and reportable operating segments for the Group.
However, reported segment information is now based
on internal management reporting information that is
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker.
In the previous annual financial statements, segments were
identified by reference to the dominant source and nature
of the Group's risks and returns. Comparatives have been
restated on a basis consistent with the new standard.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

In October 2008, the HKICPA issued its first Annual
improvements to HKFRSs which set out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. Of these, the amendment to
HKAS 40 Investment Property has resulted in changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and has affected the current
year results and financial position.



Annual Report 2010 3§
Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R &5 [i:E

For the year ended 30 June 2010
HE_ZTZFA=tHLFE

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

HW_ZBENEE BB HREAEEL| Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 (continued)
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(1)

Investment properties under construction

The adoption of the amendment to HKAS 40 brings
property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as an investment property within the scope
of this standard. Accordingly, the Group’s accounting
policies to measure investment properties at fair value
become applicable to these properties. Investment
property under construction will be measured at fair
value from the earlier of the date when fair value
first becomes reliably measurable and completion of
the property. Fair value gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Previously HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment applied to such property until completion.
Such property was measured at cost less impairment
until completion at which time it was transferred to
investment property at fair value with the difference
between the fair value and the previous carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This new
accounting policy has been applied prospectively from
1 July 2009.

Property under construction for future use
as investment property as at 1 July 2009 of
HK$391,389,000 has been reclassified from property,
plant and equipment to investment property. The
fair value of this property was not determined at 30

NEERZZEZENFA June 2009. Therefore, the reclassification was at the
=+8 Iﬂiﬁéi Bl Lt - property’s carrying amount. Such property has been
IRz EZREBEEH measured at fair value as at 30 June 2010 and the

B ZWER-ZT-F
EXA=tRBRATE
8 Bt EE s s
BRBE-E—TEAA
=HRILEE Y BN
2 o WMBFI BT o

resulting gain has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 30 June 2010. Comparatives have not
been restated.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 (continued)

()  Investment properties under construction (continued)

The effect of this change in accounting policy is

gy summarised below:
FET
HK$’000
mEEEWER Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
BE-Z—ZTF For the year ended 30 June 2010
ANA=THILFE
WEWE 2 A FEWSES  Fair value gain on investment property 6,608
Fr{S #5232 0 Increase in income tax expense (1,090)
1A M HNFEE Net increase in profit for the year 5,518
GARE A ZFIE N Increase in basic earnings per share HKO.1 cent &1l
TR E AN Increase in diluted earnings per share HKO.1 cent ;&1L
mEMBERR R Consolidated statement of financial position
RZZ-FFXA=1H Asat30June 2010
Y% - BENERERD  Decrease in property, plant and equipment (391,389)
WEMZEE N Increase in investment property
(HBRFRNRE) (net of additions during the year) 397,997
FEMENE LGN Increase in non-current assets 6,608
IRIERIE & EIE 0 Increase in deferred tax liabilities 1,090
JEMBENEFEIE N Increase in non-current liabilities 1,090
IREB S G AN Increase in retained profits 5,518
REZRIE N Increase in equity 5,518
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 (continued)

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
certain new or amended HKFRSs have been published
but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group. The directors anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group'’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date
of the pronouncement. Information on new or amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group's
accounting policies is provided below. Certain other new or
amended HKFRSs have been issued but are not expected to
have a material impact of the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and addresses the classification
and measurement of financial assets. The new standard
reduces the number of measurement categories of financial
assets and all financial assets will be measured at either
amortised cost or fair value based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Fair value
gains and losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those on certain equity investments which will be presented
in other comprehensive income. The directors are currently
assessing the possible impact of the new standard on the
Group'’s results and financial position in the first year of
application.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (continued)

Annual Improvements 2009

The HKICPA has issued Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009. Most of the amendments become effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010. The Group
expects the amendment to HKAS 17 Leases to be relevant
to the Group’s accounting policies. Prior to the amendment,
HKAS 17 generally required a lease of land to be classified
as an operating lease. The amendment requires a lease
of land to be classified as an operating or finance lease in
accordance with the general principles in HKAS 17. The
Group will need to reassess the classification of its unexpired
leases of land at 1 July 2010 on the basis of information
existing at the inception of those leases in accordance
with the transitional provisions for the amendment. The
amendment will apply retrospectively except where the
necessary information is not available. In that situation, the
leases will be assessed on the date when the amendment is
adopted. The directors are currently assessing the possible
impact of the amendment on the Group's results and
financial position in the first year of application.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial assets and liabilities, which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
and assumptions are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see 3.3 below) made up to 30 June each
year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.
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EZERBRBE® 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 HERE(E) 3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)
PRSI SR FEH A K Non-controlling interest represents the portion of the
BB BIWIEASE TR profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable
BEZRAEREN K to equity interests that are not owned by the Group
MiE A el EERE and are not the Group'’s financial liabilities.
EFREZEG °
I 122 6 7 2 PO 4R 6 B A5 AR Non-controlling interests are presented in the
MNEZERRZEY] - BB consolidated statement of financial position within
SRR REE AL equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
o AEBERD 2 IFE owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests
fl = DR e 2 E A in the results of the Group are presented in the
= 2751 4 I 12l e o B consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
NARHEE ABHRIER an allocation of the total profit or loss and the total
REMEWEETE 2 D o comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
33 KEAF 3.3 Subsidiaries
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Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition
of subsidiaries (other than those under common
control) is accounted for by applying the purchase
method. This involves the estimation of fair value of all
identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date,
regardless of whether or not they were recorded
in the financial statements of the subsidiary prior
to acquisition. On initial recognition, the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position at their
fair values, which are also used as the bases for
subsequent measurement in accordance with the
Group's accounting policies.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the
investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits are
recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Associates and jointly controlled entities

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture.

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby
two or more parties undertake an economic activity
that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control over an
economic activity, and exists only when the strategic
financial and operating decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the
venturers.
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In consolidated financial statements, an investment
in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is initially
recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for
using the equity method. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate or jointly controlled entity
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed
far impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly
attributable to the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the determination of
the Group's share of the associate or jointly controlled
entity’s profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the
associate or jointly controlled entity is carried at cost
and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the associate or jointly controlled
entity’s net assets less any identified impairment loss,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the period includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate or jointly controlled entity for the year,
including any impairment loss on the investment in
associate or jointly controlled entity recognised for the
year.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and jointly controlled entity are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associates or jointly controlled entity. Where
unrealised losses on assets sales between the Group
and its associates or jointly controlled entities are
reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Where the associate or jointly controlled
entity uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, adjustments are made,
where necessary, to conform the associate or jointly
controlled entity’s accounting policies to those of the
Group when the associate or jointly controlled entity’s
financial statements are used by the Group in applying
the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
or jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate or jointly controlled entity,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or jointly
controlled entity. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest in the associate or jointly controlled entity
is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or jointly controlled
entity.



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 75 3R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Hz2—FT

EF—=F

ZERNA=ZTHIEFE

- EEERIBREBE

34

3.5

BENERARRER(E)

R A ER i& NEE
AREERA® FAVINC=
E%E%éﬁﬂi%ﬁ%
FIERRIEE 2 BINRES
B -MNELERH &
&E%Eﬁ@& CREE
AN =N [ 42 )
E%Z&éﬁﬁﬂﬁ fied
HIRREB BT RE -
NEE 27 E R R

HEHEHIE g 2 Al kB2
%m@%ﬁﬁ& NS =Wt
ERAZReE ) BEIRE
ﬁz%%ﬁ R EEE o

EREZFERAEER -
$%lﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%m
BRI HEEIEEEE
EZHEARRERREZ
RE BREBE AR
LS BEREBEE 2R
i/)lu;&ﬂﬂ\%ﬂj%?ﬁﬁz
Wiz o

REE QB 2 RE THIEK
AMER IR ER 2R
ARBFBEARRAERA °

BRAIZEERARRAIR
BN N BB ARR

INER S
B mEAET(ET])

2 ARANYEE
@go

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

34

3.5

Associates and jointly controlled entities (continued)

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associates or jointly controlled entity. At each
reporting date, the Group determines whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in
associate or jointly controlled entity is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as being the difference
between the recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) of the associate
or jointly controlled entity and its carrying amount.
In determining the value in use of the investment,
the Group estimates its share of the present value
of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate or jointly controlled entity,
including cash flows arising from the operations of the
associate or jointly controlled entity and the proceeds
on ultimate disposal of the investment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are stated at cost less
any impairment losses. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency translation
The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

Dollars (“HK$ "), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the reporting date retranslation of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group's
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at
the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into the HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of
rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(iii)

from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold. This is usually taken as the time
when the goods are delivered and the customer
has accepted the goods;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

interest income, on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method;

dividend income, when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment is established; and

subcontracting services income, when
subcontracting services have been rendered and
accepted by the customers.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
completed.

Goodwill

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of investment in an
associate or jointly controlled entity is set out in note
3.4.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination over the Group’s interest in
the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of
exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group. Costs directly attributable to the business
combination are expensed as incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 3.11).

Any excess of the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of gain or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties
under development and construction in progress,
are stated at cost, which comprise purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses (note 3.11). Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Over the term of the leases or
estimated useful lives of 25 years,
whichever is shorter

Factory buildings

Commercial Over the term of the leases or
buildings estimated useful lives of 33 years,
whichever is shorter

Over the term of the leases or
estimated useful lives of 4 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold
improvements

Plant and machinery 10%-33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 17%

Motor vehicles 25%

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values and
useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at each reporting date. The gain or loss on retirement
or disposal of an asset of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents asset
under construction and is carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment and depreciation commences when the
construction work is completed and the asset is ready
for use.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it was held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it is
still in the course of construction or development at
the reporting date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined
by external professional valuers, with sufficient
experience with respect to both the location and
the nature of the investment property. The carrying
amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries,
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land/land
use rights, interests in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indicator that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indicators that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the assets’
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.12

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the cash-generating unit, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the
assets held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

(iii)  Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the rental

income.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Leases (continued)

(iir)

(iv)

Assets leased out under operating leases as the
lessor (continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Leasehold land/land use rights

Leasehold land/land use rights represent up-
front payments to acquire long term interests
in the usage of the land. They are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment, if any. The up-front payments are
amortised over the lease period on a straight-
line basis and the amortisation is charged to
profit or loss.
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The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entries are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

loans and receivables
available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction cost.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial asset.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss include financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term, or it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss

if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognising gains or losses

on them on a different basis; or
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

()

(if)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

- the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial
assets is provided internally on that basis
to the key management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. All financial assets within this
category are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value excluding any dividend and interest
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses
(see the policy below) and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
financial asset is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at each reporting date subsequent to initial

recognition.
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Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes observable date
that come to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the followings loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtors;

- a breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtors will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, an amount is
removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss as impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not recognised in profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Impairment losses
in respect of debt securities are reversed if
the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
reversed in subsequent periods.

3.14 Inventories

3.15

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.
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Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits, including existing
temporary difference, will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.
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Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Company has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
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= EEESHREME s 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 FiSHiEst (&) 3.15 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

(b) EIEFIEEEBRIE (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
HIEEEEANE— liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
MG BE R AT E same taxation authority on either:

Al — I8 AT P AS

it -

(i) B —EREHRE (i)  the same taxable entity; or
B 3k

(i) EFFEMBER (i)  different taxable entities which intend
SR EAR (T 78 23 either to settle current tax liabilities
FEBRHERA and assets on a net basis, or to realise
15 )& 18 =k 4 = the assets and settle the liabilities
NEE R IEER simultaneously, in each future period in
HEHENEE) which significant amounts of deferred
DAE 5E L AE 45 tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
AT IR B settled or recovered.
& B2 & & o A
REREER
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3.16 HERFALER 3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Be PR SRORERTR Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and

ﬁ&?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ CIRITRAT in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term

K ARFEHM BRER 2 highly liquid investments with original maturities of

J‘L>§ ) é;-/‘:"g JAD? \\' 40 - . .
B M SERAwREA three months or less that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

BRI NSRS - AR

B A B = B HREE IR — AR insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
B=EA - B REES of statement of cash flows presentation, cash and
B= - BeRELZHES cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which are
FEAPNR A (B R AR E repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
BIREEBITELS ZIR1T Group's cash management.

B e
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issue of share capital. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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3.18 EERAI (&) 3.18 Employee benefits (continued)
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Pension scheme (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee left
the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the Group's
employer contributions vested fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group were reduced
by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer’s
contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China except Hong Kong and
Macau (“Mainland China”) are required to participate
in a retirement benefits scheme (the “RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the RB Scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the RB Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the RB Scheme.
Contributions under the RB Scheme are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the RB Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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3.19 BipAERE 2 RN 3.19 Share-based compensation
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All share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on
1 January 2005 are recognised in the financial
statements. The Group operates equity-settled share-
based compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the equity instruments awarded. Their
value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19

3.20

Share-based compensation (continued)

For warrants granted to service providers in exchange
for services acquired, they are measured at the fair
value of the services received. Their fair values of
the services are recognised as expense immediately,
unless the services qualify for recognition as assets.
Corresponding adjustments have been made to
equity.

At the time when the share options or warrants are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options and warrants are
later forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve/warrant reserve will be transferred to
retained profit.

Financial liabilities

The Group'’s financial liabilities include bank loans,
accruals, trade and other payables, derivative financial
instruments, amounts due to associates, amount due
to ultimate holding company, promissory note and
loans from non-controlling interests.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.7).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.
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3.20 £REE(E) 3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)
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Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount

EEER © is recognised in profit or loss.

@ BE (a)  Borrowings
EEV RN TFEN Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
BRAZ S ANHERR o A net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
1% e E R 8 SR AN are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
BR - AT1S B (3B any difference between the proceeds (net of
RS KA) B E BB transaction costs) and the redemption value
B2 EAEERE is recognised in profit or loss over the period
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of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

3.22

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
the date the derivative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
that are not designated as hedging instruments are
accounted for as financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to
profit or loss for the year.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.



Annual Report 2010 £ =§

Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R &5 [i:E

For the year ended 30 June 2010
HE-_Z-ZFA=1THILFE

= EEESBRBE

3.22

3.23

BRERIREEE)

IRBERBEEIEE
EBavRKREEER
BEZBETHER - %%
BEMZRKBEBREZR
FEFE - BRERE XA
MR E L BB B ER TR
ROIZ R BBERR

SHEH(ERERE) 2
BEEHE -
B RREL

MBRRAKNTIERKET
A (ERAN) L EER
ARBERBERTAZ K
IR B H B 5 3R SR Y
BX AFEAXNEE
HRENEX -

e AN 62 18 3% HE A RS R AR
ZERZ A EERYIE
RSB 5 R EAM RN R
W BEIEYA o fis £ 3
A% Y R B WA 3 AT U BRLAR
B ZREARBERR
HZBPEEZAKRBERERMN
FHRERR o fid 30 M 2 WA
Wz ZERE - ]
R ER A FE R R LU A
- IR W RERR AN B BA
e

RV FER AR A Z &
FABEERFHNBR
W H AP E TS R
PRI o RSN - e FE IR EF
BAE A REREERRAA
KEAR: RAKXEEH
RZABERRBBRER
HE(RNERZTHR)
B R AT (@) - A
R -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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3.24 Non-current assets held for sale
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A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets
to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with
those assets that will be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance with the
accounting policies before the classification. Then on
initial classification as held for sale and until disposal,
the non-current assets, or the disposal group, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to
this measurement policy so far as the accounts of the
Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies governed with.

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held
for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current assets is not
depreciated or amortised.
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The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive
directors are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading
of fine jewellery and diamonds;

- Property investment; and
Investment

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arms length prices.

[v¥]
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The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those use in its financial statements prepared
under HKFRSs, except that expenses related to share-
based payments, share of results of associates and
jointly controlled entities accounted for using the
equity method, finance costs, income tax expenses
and corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, interests in associates
and interests in jointly controlled entities. In addition,
corporate assets, which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, promissory
note, due to ultimate holding company, provision
for tax, deferred tax liabilities and corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and primarily
applies to the Group's headquarter.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediate, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or any entity that is related party of the
Group.

a1
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.26 Related parties (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealing with the
entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when
determining whether a decline in fair value has been significant
and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the historical
data on market volatility as well as the price of the specific
investment are taken into account. The Group also takes into
account other factors, such as industry and sector performance
and financial information regarding the issuer/investee.
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m - BR& S st et & H B 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(&
REWE D FEMET

AEBEREMERTIIRRMFE3.10
PO St BERIA R FETIRR - &
BWMEZ N TFHESHNT B REHM
Fgtt o R EEGENE
ET((@BETDERE - %FHE
DERETER - MzERRF
ETAREE - RAEEERIE
MERIEA o RIEHHIEE - =
ZERGHEB 2R EAEBR
EREERE - ZFhstTIEHMA
ERMBSEEBEATEERZHIE
HLE -

FEW AR AR E R

AR 2 PR MR OB (E B AR R
BREHATRE M RERE 2 Rie
DT 2 FHE AR E IR E 2 T 1F
o BHERWGIAZ REESR
ZIEFHAER KRB - BREE
2EFPHREZ(EE B mRE
FBREWGRIBI » HAKEEFS
(B ERBCERERE) <15
e ek E BRI ELEREE
NEENEE - BIZAEITRERE
e

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated fair value of investment property

Investment property of the Group is stated at fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3.10.
The fair value of investment property, set out in note 17 to
the financial statements, is determined by an independent
professional valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates (“CCA").
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
reporting date. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and actual transactions in the market.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness, the
collateral security and the past collection history of each
client. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group,
on whose account provision for impairment has been made,
were improved and no impairment of their ability to make
payments were noted, reversal of provision for impairment
may be required.

~
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m - BREEE st at & FE B CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(&) AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
FE#RE Provision for inventories

REERERFHFEZEES
%’Eﬁj REBANETFE 2Rk
DY HFE 2 REEREER
AETUREELR - REEEH
BRERBETAEHE - A8
BRI BHE 2 =L - Bl
ZAEHRRINEE

{5t ENEAH: 18 R IR AR 1H

REEE TR BN AR R B AT
H-BERBRBEBZEBERX
NHREM A KEAELERY
b o REFHIRBBRIAGRT
RIRNSVFLek < R - HERR
HEHE R RSB B PSR
FOEER BB BELRE

RAFNEERNYEEEBE -

EBHBRE ((FEE]) EFEZEA
ERETHBARZHEEE -
RERH S BEZNENER -
KRB ERRANRA R 2 BEE
HEVHEEFS - RZE—F
FRNA=ZTH A ERE
BmE AEBEBASBENA
1,300,000 & 7T 2 iS5 o

B-ETN\EFE AR —H
MBARREEREREERM
BZHR - BMEZINEETR
REBEBRERCTRLZE
WEZER  ARBEEARY
RAR B R AR B 2 BRI E
BEMEATE -

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subjected to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.

During the year and up to the date of these financial
statements, the Inland Revenue Department (“IRD"”) of
Hong Kong is in the process of reviewing the tax affairs
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. After taking into
account the development of the IRD’s review to date,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group’s tax provision is fairly presented. As at 30 June
2010, in relation to the aforementioned IRD’s review, the
Group has purchased a tax reserve certificate amounting to
approximately HK$1.3 million.

Since 2008, the Company and a subsidiary were selected
for a field audit by the IRD. The field audit is still in progress
and after taking into account the development of the IRD’s
field audit to date, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that there should not be any material impact on the
Company'’s and the Group's tax positions.
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(%)

SR EHRREEN D FE
CH

ERERIRER 2N FEAZIR
APREEEATE  XKE
AEEEEEHEEEARHEDY
REBAER - PIINE R B
RERE M TR AT F B (IRIRTT R 1
RITREBAER) - BERE
IR IR (B K R AR RE R0 1T 2
B - ZEFRAEMNBEERIHA
FEMATEREATE -

SERE R

TERBRREREAIATL
WTES - ARAZHTESE
HARE=ARBRIEHLE
P -

EEDHEBEBREARRATES
EEHZHEETE  ZFHEH
RIHERBARDEEIR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of fair value of unlisted warrants granted

The fair value of warrants granted was calculated using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model based on the Group
management’s significant inputs into the pricing model
such as the expected life of warrants granted, based on
exercise restrictions and behavioural consideration, the
volatility of share price, weighted average share prices, and
exercise price of the warrants granted. Changes in these
inputs may materially affect the fair value estimates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
of the Company have identified the Group’s three services
lines as operating segments.

The operating segments were determined based on the
reports reviewed by the Company’s executive directors that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.

O
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Fit B EEREE
KERHRER
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of NERE RE &a
fine jewellery and diamonds  Property investment Investment Consolidated

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
FA7 AT FA7 AT FAT AT FA7 AT
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

HHA - Segment revente:

HEFHREE/  Seles torevenue
WEaIRER from external parties 1,018,293 1,151,465 10,522 36,361 2,893 129 1,031,708 1,189,622
A% Segment results 12,366 (17.842) 14,390 108,810 2,326 (6,947) 29,082 84,021
SARAAER M Share-based compensation (53,008) =
AARFR Unallocated expenses (15,215) (5,463)
RENA Finance costs @B (12187
EIEHERFFEE  Share of results of associates (260) (701)

FEE 2R Share of results of
EEzE jointly controlled entities 52,82 5472
BRAERARE]  Profit before income tax 11189 7114
AHEE Segment assets 461,930 481,238 40122 1,231,363 40,438 23,980 912,490 1,736,581
REENFZER  Interests in associates 2821 3,051

RARMGEE  Interestsin ointly
LG controlled entities 320466 21638
ReRRess Cash and cash equivalents 153,940 45,759
EREEE Deferred tax assets 9217 9217
APEATEE  Unallocated corporate assets 1m 2682
BEAT Total assets 139,111 2013672
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Hat B BEREE
KERHRER
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of VEST &
fine jewellery and diamonds  Property investment Investment Consolidated
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
FAT AT FAT AT FA7 737 TE1 AT
HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
ek Segmentiabilties 186636 194270 6,088 36,587 365 379 193,089 231236
FIET-EEA  Bank loans, secured 17899 682,89
BARE Promissory note - 42,000
DS A Due to ultimate

AR holding company 1871 -
TR Provision for tax 10,180 11623
EtiRaE Deferred tax liahlities 1,106 16
FRATER Unallocated corporate liabilties 1439 -
afEgg Total liabilties 302685 967,771
HHTER : Other segment information:
nE Depreciation (6,669) (8,153) (37 (137) - (59) (6,706) (8,349
AELH/ 14 Amortisation of leasehold

il i land/and use rights (214) (236) - - - - (214) (236)
ZENE Bad debts recovery 1,469 - - = - = 1,469 =
FEAMEZLTE  Changesin fair value of

29 investment properties - - 6,608 101,080 - - 6,608 101,080
fiEeBIAY Fair value loss on derivative

ATERR financial instruments (@43)  (1,489) - - - - (643)  (1485)
HERELH,/ 10 Gain on disposal of leasehold

R e land/land use rights 616 - - - - - 616 -
HENE  BEREE GainfLoss) on disposal of property,

2%/ (B%8)  plantand equipment 680 (65) (203) - - = a7 (65)
HENBRAAZER  Loss on disposal of subsiclaries - - - 03 = = - 3)
5% BERRE  Impairment loss on property,

ALRERE plant and equipment - (2,261) - = - = - (2,261)
REEUGURRE  Provision forlong term receivables - (8,449) - = - = - (8,449)
BAEWE Write back off(Provision for)

#m/(Bh) trade receivables m (3,209) (840) - - - (668  (3,209)
FEEm Write back against inventories - 4,991 - = = = = 4,991
HEHA Interest income - - - - m 850 m 850
REERDHBEE  Additions to non-current

segment assets 9,072 2,545 1,672 391,389 - - 16,744 393,934
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)

B TERAER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
AEBREINAREE ZWMARE The Group's segment revenue from external customers and
IEMBEE (£RMT AN S its non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are
BT I divided into the following geographical areas.

RESREFFEZWA

Revenue from
external customers

2010 2009
FET FET
HK$000 HK$°000
B8 (EEBAEMD) Hong Kong (domicile) 140,533 194,227
JbEM North America 528,551 558,919
&M Europe 346,450 411,914
=i Other locations 16,174 24,562
ol Total 1,031,708 1,189,622
FEREERE
Non-current assets
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
B (EREFTTEH) Hong Kong (domicile) 416,474 397,416
BOM Europe 5,556 931
a3 Mainland China 364,514 265,797
HAtbi = Other locations 3 8
Bat Total 786,547 664,152
B2 IR E RARRER AR The geographical location of customers is based on the
B St Em 2 tEmEl D o 3F location at which the services were provided or the goods
MEEE (SR T ARRIN) 232 delivered. The geographical of the non-current assets (other
B R IREEEERFEHmEl than financial instruments) is based on the physical location
5 of the asset.
HITESEEASEEEME The executive directors determine the Group is domiciled in
REE  ARAEEXEHEL Hong Kong, which is the location of the Group’s principal
FrAEH ° office.
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7N WE 6. REVENUE
Was (BN B 2 & 258 $8 4840 Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
REREKESTANEEEHE®m the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances
ZEERE . T RREWA - for returns and trade discounts, subcontracting services
SWAER - FBEWARIKEZ income, gross rental income, interest income, and dividend
A& S A o income from investments.
REBEWER 2 AITWT : An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
SHEEm Sale of goods 1,018,293 1,137,106
0T ARFS YA Subcontracting services income = 14,359
e W AERE Gross rental income 10,522 36,861
R B UTA Interest income 773 850
TEZIRBIRA Dividend income from investments 2,120 446
1,031,708 1,189,622
+ v BER AR 7. FINANCE COSTS
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
MEFRX : Interest charges on:
RITERK Bank loans
—ERAFREBHEE — wholly repayable within five years 6,550 16,361
AR AFRNBHRER Promissory note wholly repayable
2GR within five years 12 562
BIEE R A Total borrowing costs 6,562 16,923
B B ERT Less: Bank loan interest capitalised in
I ES-V.N |k o) investment property/property
EHFE under development (4,331) (4,736)
2,231 12,187




Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 75 3R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2010
HE-Z-ZFXA=THILFE

~

I\~ BRETS B ATE 7

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

2010 2009
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$°000
REBIBRFTS T AT & T The Group'’s profit before income tax

BAkR, (BT A AT is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

THEEW
BEERFENE Cost of inventories sold 924,552 1,047,469
REKREMEZHE Gross rental income from

U A 42 %8 investment property (10,522) (36,861)
BRAKEME X Outgoings in respect of

investment property 982 2,541
REKEMZE 2 Net rental income from

WA FRE investment property (9,540) (34,320)
& (s +1) Depreciation (note 15) 6,706 8,349
&1, b fE R Amortisation of leasehold land/

MRS (B EE+75) land use rights (note 16) 214 236
BIRELHAET W REF  Minimum lease payments under

ZEEBERF operating leases on land and buildings 5,321 4,749
Z AN & Auditors’ remuneration 1,042 925
RO Bad debts recovery (1,469) =
FERD Write back against inventories* = (4,991)
PTEESM T ERFERE  Fair value loss on derivative

financial instruments 443 1,485
JRE N B Net foreign exchange losses 3,006 11,072
Y% - W MEEAE Impairment loss on property,

BRI * plant and equipment ** = 2,261
R B E R IE R Provision for long term receivables - 8,449
HERE T, it Gain on disposal of leasehold land/

5 ARG land use rights (616) =
HEME - BB REE (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,

Z (Wzs),/EiE plant and equipment (477) 65
B 5 WGRIA R Provision for trade receivables 668 3,205
L EMB AR 2 EE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries = 23
* FAZEFEELB A ALEE R * Write back against inventories for the year was included in

EdER R [HHERA] A -

“cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

* % ERNZYE BERZERE e Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment for the year

EBERLFAGEEERERZ

[EMEEER] A -

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

was included in “other operating expenses” on the face of the
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N> EEHRAX(EE) 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
BEBNEHIIARNFEERE B Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
BE A 2 (H AT FERR B8 A IR B R 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
16.5% 515 o FE b [% fE R T Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere
Fl 2 BiIEIR AN & B & 4& 2 [E Bl 7] have been calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing
AR EAZ MEGTE - W in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on
BIEZE VAR 2 IRITER - existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
ZRERIEFIEDL o thereof.

2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
BIER Current tax

e Hong Kong 6,495 2,757

NAFERETR Under/(Qver) provision in prior years
(EBEREE) 99 (281)
6,594 2,476

FEERTE (fE=+=) Deferred tax (note 33)
REE Current year 1,090 (67,283)

Frisfims, (%) Total income tax expense/(credit) 7,684 (64,807)
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FrSBifise(He) Me
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(continued)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

Reconciliation between income tax expense/(credit) and

2010 2009
FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

KR ETSHE Al A Profit before income tax 11,189 71,142
BRET{S B AT R FIFL TR Z Tax on profit before income tax,

FEME16.5%:TE calculated at the statutory rate of 16.5% 1,846 11,738
PAEL A R ERE S & 3 2 [T Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

BRARTRAME 2 & operating in other jurisdictions (1,108) (1,734)
FEIGBEE AR EE 2RI E  Tax effect of share of results of associates 43 116
FEMGH RS E RS Tax effect of share of results of

LTGS2 jointly controlled entities (8,715) (903)
AN H 2 T Zsi.z Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 14,895 6,429
FERRTMA 2 g5 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,744) 2,717)
SEBEBANEFERS Tax effect of prior years' tax losses

BEHGTE utilised this year (606) (1,023)
IR R IR B R & Tax effect of temporary differences

BEGM ERER L derecognised in associated with

MR e the assets classified as held for sale - (82,500)
RERMBSBEHHTE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 2,974 6,068
IGEERETE/ Under/(Over) provision in prior years

(EBEERE) 99 (281)
AEEHBERS/(HE) Tax charge/(credit) for the year 7,684 (64,807)

[=2)

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

T ARFAHEEAEMG R
7 OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

RNARHEE AEMLEE T
3,722,000 L (ZEZ N F ¢
135,939,000/& JT ) # © AR
R EREFERE Z S A
61,276,000 (ZTZNAF :
98,673,000 7T) °

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$3,722,000 (2009: HK$135,939,000), a
profit of HK$61,276,000 (2009: HK$98,673,000) has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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+— B2 11. DIVIDENDS
@ AFERNAQREEA (@) Dividends payable to the owners of the Company
RS attributable to the year:
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
FE - ERE®AR0.010* 87T Interim-HK$0.010* (2009: HK$0.010%)
(ZZZTAF : 0.010*787T) per ordinary share 3,128 3,128
BORAR S — B @M% 0.001 7T Proposed final - HK$0.001
(ZEZNF : 0.010*%E7T) (2009: HK$0.010*) per ordinary share 3,128 3,128
BORERIRE — BIE BARZHE T Proposed special — Nil
(ZZZTNEF : 0.300*B7T) (2009: HK$0.300*) per ordinary share = 93,849
6,256 100,105
REEE B8RS 2 RKE The final dividend (2009: final and special dividend)
BRE(ZZEZENF : REK proposed after the reporting date has not been
FFRIAR S ) W MR R4S recognised as a liability at the reporting date, but
HezBfE BERMAE reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
E-T-TFA=1H the year ended 30 June 2010.

\EFE 2 RN o

* &4 Hr 4 Al 3 Before share subdivision
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(b)

11. DIVIDENDS (continued)

AEEEHAERE G2 (b) Dividends payable to the owners of the Company
U BEEEMNEA T attributable to the previous financial year, approved
BEEARE : and paid during the year:
2010 2009
FEr FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AEFEMERE S 2 £ Final dividend in respect of the
—HIEEE 2 KRR previous financial year,
A% E A% 0.010** BT approved and paid during the year,
—ZTNF B of HK$0.010** per ordinary share
LEAZ0.015** 7B 7T) (2009: HK$0.015** per ordinary share) 3,128 4,692*
AEFEHERE S 2 L Special dividend in respect of the
—BTEFEE 2 RIS previous financial year,
FR%E R 0.300%* BT approved and paid during the year,
(ZEZNF : Gk of HK$0.300** per ordinary share
AREAEIT) (2009: Nil per ordinary share) 93,849 -
96,977 4,692*
* RZZZENFE N A @ The actual final dividend paid for the year ended 30 June

* %

—t+t=-—B®EHNET
CR% 1n 7 48 AT ) K B 3%
33,030,303 i% & 3@ A% -
BE_ZTZNFAA
“tHLEFEXHNE
XK H#R % B 5 4,692,000
HBIT °

B An Hr AR Al

* %

2008 was HK$4,692,000 due to additional 33,030,303
ordinary shares issued (before share subdivision) and
allotted on 22 September 2008.

Before share subdivision
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+Z - BlRER 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

BREXRBF HIRBEARRBHS
ANEIEAREE A 3,722,000 %
JTL(ZZEZNF : 135,939,000/8
T0) REANE BTN ITE
f%3,128,303,340 &k ( = T T ),
£F : 3,053,193,340 % (42 &%)
FTE o

FR - R-TE—ZTFRATAI
B AAE#HFKREECBT
ZEBITRABITLERRIFS 5
TREREE BT TR
B ([RGB ir4E]) - BE=_ZTZT N
FERNA=THIFEZ InEFES
LRATEE (R IR A E R
—TEENFLA—BHBEL)ESR
753,053,193,340 % ( & %I| BT A&
305,319,334 %) °

BREERRNREAQGEES
A JEAEF A s ) JF E8 3,722,000
P IT M N EITIEINZ IiEF
LRARENE 3,194,575,952 ik (48
AT B EE SR 2 EIET
FARE)FE - I EEREEAT
FRHE R 2 T T AR EE
TR R NE BT I E B
fi% 3,128,303,340 % fn _E %€ 40 £y
BEARRAR)ZIE LIRS T
FEmESEAREREET 2SR
f% 66,272,612 lRETH -

NBE-FEAEAA=TAL
FE - ARALWECEELE
ZRBR - RLEFIRERES
BF -

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
year of HK$3,722,000 (2009: HK$135,939,000), and on the
weighted average of 3,128,303,340 (2009: 3,053,193,340
as restated) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

During the year, on 19 May 2010, the Company subdivided
every issued and unissued ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.1 each into ten ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each (“Share Subdivision”). The weighted average
number of ordinary shares for the year ended 30 June 2009,
as if the Share Subdivision had occurred on 1 July 2008, was
deemed to be 3,053,193,340 shares (305,319,334 shares
before restatement).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
for the year of HK$3,722,000 and the weighted average
of 3,194,575,952 ordinary shares outstanding during the
year, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential shares.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation of diluted earnings per share is calculated
based on the weighted average of 3,128,303,340 ordinary
shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average
of 66,272,612 ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no
consideration as if all the Company’s unlisted warrants have
been exercised.

No diluted earnings per share was shown as the Company
had no potential ordinary shares for the year ended 30 June
2009.

O
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(=)

+=-1E B Pl B X ( 13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
HEEME — M= (INCLUDING DIRECTORS'
+m) EMOLUMENTS - NOTE 14)
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
TIE %< FEK Wages, salaries, allowances and
EMFam benefits in kind 62,224 102,602
BRIKERA—15F Pension costs — defined
G2 contribution plans 4,367 5,715
B BORMZ R Less: Forfeited contributions (14) -
66,577 108,317

REE

i

T EEMER
A B ZFEN

KB EMRRREBRRHEDIE
—AANTHREEZESTHEN

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

N Ordinance is as follows:
2010 2009
FE FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(ZF31)
(restated)
e Fees 264 254
e R REYF = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,173 5,330
TEAT Bonus 1,163 19,733
RONGTEIH TR Retirement scheme contributions 225 237
6,825 25,554

B EXFEREESN - RREFE
NBERITES - FRTEFHL
B IFATE S WEUTAEE
HifERNE -

Save as disclosed above, none of the executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive directors received
any fees or other reimbursements or emoluments for both

years.
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T EEMERSREE 14. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
AEZFHM @) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Bz ZT—ZTFR-_ZTF (@) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
NEANA=Z1THIEEE for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009 are set
HEZHEENREEEZ out below:
eI T

2010
428
RENFIR N
Salaries, BE
allowances Retirement
#£  and benefits 4 scheme by
Fees in kind Bonus  contributions Total
FET T Fén FET FéEn
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
HTES: Executive directors:
REZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,434 300 147 3,881
2 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 875 140 39 1,054
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 419 60 19 498
e Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 445 413 2 878
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
REE(F3EG)  ChuWai Kok (note (i) 38 - 50 - 88
EH T (H3EGi)  Cao Kuangyu (note (i) 25 - = - 25

BUFHTES . Independent non-executive directors:

E4E (M)  Wong Kai Cheong (note (i) 38 - 50 - 88
REA Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - 50 - 100
B I Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - 50 - 100
TSR (B3 () Sze, Irons (note (v) 50 - 50 - 100
SR (HIEE()  Cheung Chi Fai, Frank

(note (i) 13 - - - 13
ZT-TEEE Total 2010 264 5173 1,163 225 6,825
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+M - EEMERSREE 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
ANBEZFif 2) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) HE—_ZT—ZTFR_ZZ (@) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
NESNAZ+TALEFE - for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009 are set
R B R EE out below: (continued)

MeEHInT : (&)
2009
e 2 BIK
REMHE FE
Salaries, Retirement
#%  allowances and Al scheme st
Fees  benefits in kind Bonus  contributions Total
FEL FET FAT FEL FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&51) (51)
(restated) (restated)
HTES Executive directors:
REE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,482 15,890 154 19,526
5|\ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 944 3,080 43 4,067
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 437 581 19 1,037
4 Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 467 182 2 670
FaTES: Non-executive directors:
KEH Chu Wai Kok 50 - - - 50
288 (M5 (v)  Leung Hai Ming, Raymond
(note (iv)) 17 - - - 17
BUFHTES " Independent non-executive directors:
BilE Wong Kai Cheong 50 - - = 50
RER Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
PR I Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
TS (MFEW)  Sze, Irons (note (v) 37 - - - 37
“ETNFEE Total 2009 254 5330 19,733 237 25,554
FAMBESEENESRE There was no arrangement under which a director waived
WEEAMNE 2 HE or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years.
FR - AEETERES During the years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
SATHER BN & ER I A S the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
AN ZR £ B B 2 42 B) 5k Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

BB E
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(E T -EERA=THILEEE

(b)

HE_Z-ZFRK-_ZTZF
NEANA=Z1THIEEE
HEZHEENREEEZ
B &HFIT : (&)

Bt

(i) FEEREEER=-F
—ZE=F=+H5 5
BEAARERITES
KRB LIERITES ©

iy BERTFTR-_ZT-—TFMN
AtBEZEAART
FEHITES -

(i) FTEER-_FT-—ZTFMN
HEtHEZERARATH
BYIETES -

vy REBAR-_ZZNF+
A+ HBEHEARRRIEHR
TES -

v) HERER-_ZEZENF+
A-BEZEAART
BYIFHITES -

EfUESHAL

FARAUZSHFALEE
=R (ZEBEZTNF: =8&)
B HMeHBIER L
X BTME(ZZEZT A
F:MB)WIHEEZES

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
for the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009 are set
out below: (continued)

Notes:

(i) Chu Wai Kok has resigned as a non-executive director
of the Company and Wong Kai Cheong resigned as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
30 March 2010.

(ii) Cao Kuangyu was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 7 April 2010.

(iii) Cheung Chi Fai, Frank was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 7 April 2010.

(ivy  Leung Hai Ming, Raymond has resigned as a non-
executive director of the Company on 10 October 2008.

(v) Sze, Irons was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 2 October 2008.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year
included three (2009: three) directors, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining two (2009: two) non-
directors, highest paid individuals are as follows:

FALT NS FHEBIT ¢
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
¥4  EBREYAZ  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,371 1,707
RIRFTEIEETR Retirement scheme contributions 12 29
T4 Bonus 80 104
2,463 1,840

w



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 73R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2010

= S )

==
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(b)

=
A

EMERSREIER 14. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION
S #HEM ) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
AfNERSHEAL(E) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
FEE &= A T The number of non-directors, highest paid individuals
EZEENFTIEER whose emoluments fell within the following bands is
ABAR : as follows:
ABHE
Number of individuals
2010 2009
Z2%1,000,000/87C  Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001 & 7T2 HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 2 1
1,500,000 7T
2 2
FR - AEEIWE RS During the years, no emoluments were paid by the
Rag A TSI A EMEE Group to the two highest paid individuals as an
ERMARINAREE inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
B SEEN BRI (E - compensation for loss of office.
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+H > Y% - BB RHRE 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
rEE Group
BTRHE i [l %8
E= = BE  #BRE frTi
Buldings and Propertes BB Fumiture fidures, — Construction
leasefold Under Plantand  equipmentand in e
improvements  development machinery  motor vehicles progress Total

AT AT AT 4T AT AT
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 K 000 HKS 000 K 00

R-ZENELA-H At1 July 2008
it Cost 64,469 - 60946 1733 2646 175,39
ZirfERAE Accumulated depreciaton

and impairment (35,286) - (50,114) (39272) - (124.672)
EAsE Net book amaunt 9183 = 10832 806 2646 50723
B TBNENA=TALER Year ended 30 June 2009
2 Opening net book amount 9183 - 10832 8,062 2646 50723
WERBAG (EEt-) Acquistion of subsidares note 41) - 38323 = = = 3323
it Additons 05 8157 136 531 1,603 10,702
2 Transfer 4369 - = = (4369 =
he& Disposals = = = (6) = (68)
il Depreciation (3,386) - (121 (3,686) - (8,349)
i Impairment - - (1.241) (1,020 - (2.261)
Eiae Bxchange redignment 1620 - I/ £5 120 1857
EREESE Closing net book amount 32,061 391,389 8522 3864 - 135,836
REENENAZTH At30June 2009
B Cost 7299 391,389 59,286 18157 - 571,84
ZitirERiE Accumulated deprecition

and impairment (40,931) - (50,764) (44.293) - (135,988)
FASE Net book amount 3,061 391,389 8522 3864 = 135836
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TH -WME - BER

% & 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(& (continued)
REB (&) Group (continued)
ETRAE BRA il %8>
HEE Iz FE  #ERAE fRIR
Buildingsand ~ Properties T Fumiture fitures,  Construction
leasehold under Plantand equipment and in 4%
improvements  development machinery  motor vehicles progress Total
fén i i fén i i
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BER-TEARZTRLER Year ended 30 June 2010
ENEEFE Opening net book amount 32,061 391,389 852 3,864 - 435,836
HE Additions m - 646 1,35 - 9012
ERERanz (Wi +t) Transer o ivestment property (note 17) - (391,389) - - - (391,389)
i3 Disposals %7) - - (383) - (1,350)
fig Depreciation (3,621) - (1,226) (1,859) - (6,706)
i Bxchange realignment M - (555) 49 - 330
EREESE Closing net hook amount 34,935 - 7307 34m - 1519
R-Z-RERA=TH At30 Jure 2010
i Cost 79,600 - 59,538 43908 - 188,046
HERNE Accumulted depreciaton and impaimment  (44,665) - (52151) (45437) - (142,2%3)
e Net ook amount 34935 - 1381 34m - 45,793

R-ZENFNA=1H &R
{7 2. 4,736,000 7 7T & 5I) A 3
B -

R-ZZE—ZFA=+H" XK
& B8R 3 (B #4917,430,000 78
T(ZEZNF : AEBZBE
FERE TEFRAFELTE
#9 : 410,747,000 7T) 2 &= THE
FREFAERE T AEEZ—
MERITEE (M=) -

As at 30 June 2009, included in properties under
development was interest capitalised of HK$4,736,000.

At 30 June 2010, the Group's certain buildings with
net book amounts of approximately HK$17,430,000
(2009: the Group's properties under development and
certain buildings with aggregate net book amounts of
approximately HK$410,747,000) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).
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+75 %Eiﬂ/tﬂﬁ)ﬁ 16. LEASEHOLD LAND/LAND USE RIGHTS

AEE
Group
2010 2009
FET FEr
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHAREFE Opening net carrying amount 8,883 9,119
FREHER Amortisation charge for the year (214) (236)
HE Disposal (1,202) =
FRIEEFE Closing net carrying amount 7,467 8,883
AREBRTEE L,/ b fFE R The Group's interests in leasehold land/land use rights
2w BTN EEERNIE - H represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
REVFEATHT : carrying amount are analysed as follows:
2010 2009
FET TFET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REBRFHA In Hong Kong held on:
TEER+FH HHEE Medium term lease of between 10 to 50 years 3,547 3,683
MEBLAIMNER Outside Hong Kong, held on:
F 6 LA_E R EAFE HA Long term lease of over 50 years 242 248
+E =R +FhHATHE Medium term lease of between 10 to 50 years 3,678 4,952
7,467 8,883
RZZE—ZFFA=1TH &% At 30 June 2010, the Group’s certain leasehold land/
%] R TEI {8 42 58 49 5,429,000 /& 7T land use rights with aggregate carrying amounts of
(ZZEZ N5 :6,528,000/87T) 2 HK$5,429,000 (2009: HK$6,528,000) were pledged to
ATHRE LM L0 AR secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
HUABRE TASE 2 — R RIT 29).

EEFE=T) -
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HE—

Z-ZEFERA=THIEFE

o

T+t R EWE

AEEAGEHETAFE - A
RERESHENIEER NHAEE
SEFRBIERKEERZR A
YEiED - BRAAFEERR
BREMERBEMNE °

SIAER B F SRR R Z B {EE
BRI T

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes or
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:

N1
Group
2010 2009
iz &% TAT
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
RENZERE Carrying amount at beginning of the year - 752,400
HE Disposals () = (15,480)
BEEVE BE Transfer from property, plant and equipment
& (it (note 15) 391,389 -
hE Additions 7,672 -
Bz RO EHFAE () Bank loan interests capitalised (note 7) 4,331 -
ATERREE 2 FhE Net gain from fair value adjustments 6,608 101,080
ERB5ARHELE Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (note 34)
ZEE(ME=1m) (o) - (838,000)
RERZIEE{E Carrying amount at end of the year © 410,000 -

R-Z—TEAA=+AE  #
ABEDEZARCH LB
9,067,000 7T, °

R=B—BFXA=TH &%
B2 RAMERNES - LUK
R -

R-ZZE—ZFA=1H" K&
B BRmEEA £ 410,000,000 7T
B EFEA - UERE
FTAEEZ —RIRTTEE (HF
=+5) e

Group (note 29).

As at 30 June 2010, included in investment property was
interest capitalised of HK$9,067,000.

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s investment property is
situated in Hong Kong and is held under long term lease.

At 30 June 2010, the Group’s investment property with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$410,000,000 were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
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@f

—ZFERA=THIEFE

+E REWE®

wikt

(a)

R-ZZEENFHLA=-+HA "
$%@@*%%i%:ﬁﬂi
B E ik + LA (15,480,000
BT HEMCRNEAHRBE
37-45 55 TR 8 —H 12
BAEZZEREDE - HE Lt
REYEER_ZTZTN\FEt+A
—+-tH5E/K + 3,080,000
TZAFEKRZEREEZE=-Z
TNFENA=TRHLEFEZE
IR ©

RZZETEAFESNA+AB K
EEE—ZBIE=HEIVE
BEEHS(RERE]D - U
18 838,000,000 7 JT i & AL 7
BB e #8523 525 527
SREMERRE(EMERK
EDEBEZRENE R
TNERNA=Z1TH  RBRESRH
iR FE 55 - BNER
REHD R [T RFIEREZ
AE] mEMEAREZREA
BEN2EREREHIRE
B ¥ {5 {E /5 838,000,00078 7T °
E it - A F {8 U = 98,000,000
BLTEREZE-ZTNFA
=+ HIEFEZ BEER

RZZBZEAF+A+TRE B
TRHEENERAE - A%
EEABIREHEMRSHUR

R-ZZE—ZTFXA=+H ' &
SR ZREYERB LT
BEMEETEARAMERES
BgREE . 2ZHEUMEZT
& & %7 & {8 A410,000,000 7%
T AEMGEEMELEZ AT
1B #%£ 6,608,000 8 TTHEAHE
—E-EEXA=THIEE
= b

17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Notes:

(a)

()

On 25 September 2008, the Group entered into an agreement
for sale and purchase with an independent third party in relation
to the disposal of an investment property located at Unit A, 12
Floor, Kaiser Estate Phase 1, No. 37-45 Man Yue Street, Hung
Hom, Kowloon, at a consideration of HK$15,480,000. The
disposal of the aforesaid investment property was completed on
27 October 2008 and a fair value gain of HK$3,080,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2009.

On 16 June 2009, the Group entered into a provisional
agreement for sale and purchase (the “Provisional Agreement”)
with an independent third party in relation to the disposal
of an investment property, the whole block of Continental
Diamond Plaza, No. 523, 525, 527 Hennessy Road, Hong
Kong (“Continental Diamond Plaza”), at a consideration of
HK$838,000,000. As at 30 June 2009, in accordance with
HKFRS 5, Continental Diamond Plaza was classified as “Assets
classified as held for sale” and its carrying amount was revalued
to HK$838,000,000 with reference to the consideration as
stipulated in the Provisional Agreement. As a result, a fair value
gain of HK$98,000,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 30 June 2009.

On 16 October 2009, the disposal of Continental Diamond
Plaza was completed and the entire sale proceeds had been fully
received by the Group.

At 30 June 2010, the Group's investment properties were
revalued by CCA, an independent firm of chartered surveyors,
at HK$410,000,000 on an open market existing use basis by
reference to market prices for similar properties. A fair value
adjustment on revaluation of HK$6,608,000 arising therefrom
was credited to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2010.

O
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IRMtEB AR 2= 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥ /N
Company
2010 2009
FET FEIT
HK$000 HK$°000
IEETMRR D - RAKAR Unlisted shares, at cost 124,849 124,849
HEELE Deemed capital contribution 173,710 173,710
AR Provision for impairment (33,359) (25,037)
265,200 273,522
FEUHT B A IR Due from subsidiaries 463,199 446,394
FEUHT B A IR Provision against amounts due
LB from subsidiaries (102,000) (102,000)
361,199 344,394
626,399 617,916
DEARBEELZ Due from subsidiaries classified
e NGO as current assets 141,317 134,525

%féﬁ%ﬂﬂz AT -

L*A&ﬂﬁﬁ(‘%ﬁﬁﬁ_ﬁrﬂﬂ(
+_1Iﬂ NEE  ETBIERM
B BNZE E%fﬂ&ﬁﬁ% R ZFIE
A#141,317,0008 T (ZEZ N,
£ : 134,525,000/87T) °

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within the next twelve months from the
reporting date, except for amounts due from subsidiaries
of HK$141,317,000 (2009: HK$134,525,000) which are
repayable on demand.
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18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2010

BB AR BT ¢ are as follows:
ERER/ RAREL
AL/ BRTRAEE BHAAL
BaRkEEnY Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
2 registration registered/issued BE it FEEK
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
EREHRERBRAR Bk 2REE 108 ERR 100 - EREHRITE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Diamond trading
and polishing
Brangredi Limited & 1IREE 1 AT LRk - 100 HEEHES
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Jewellery trading
CJ. (UK) Limited* RE 1,000 RE(E 1 58 2 LBk - 100 KERMLE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery wholesaling
GBP1 each
ENEAERAR B 100 REIfE 18Tz SRR - 100 ERES
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Diamond trading
HK$1 each
fEfiEA (1) BRAR) e B&IRA7 497,760 5 T - 100 BRESIITE
Mainland China Paid up capital of Diamond trading
HK$7,497,760 and polishing
Continental Investment A 100,000 REE 1 87T L@k 100 - RERR
Company Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$1 each
{BHIAE (1) BRAR* T B 817K 35,000,000 57 - 100 W BaE
Mainland China Paid up capital of Jewellery manufacturing
HK$35,000,000
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+/\ B AR ZHERE =) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BAIRR/ ARAEL
AL/ BRTRAEE BHAAL
BakEEnd Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
] registration registered/issued B itz FEER
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ENIAE AHHERAR &b 10,000,000 R {E 17872 1Ak 100 - REEHBERNE
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery manufacturing
Limited HK$1 each and wholesaling
BRtEERAR B 2MREE 1 BT TRk - 100 ES T
Continental Property Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
Holdings Limited
Crystal Gain Developments RERRES 100 A E 135702 E ik - 100 NERE
Limited British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares of Property investment
US$1 each
DCGS Management Service Bh 10,000,000 RE(E 1 BT 2 E R - 100 RERRREERRY
Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Investment holding/
of HK$1 each providing management
services
EEREERAA &b 50,000 REE 1082 AR 100 - RERR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares Investment holding
of HK$10 each
ROKERARAR BA 10,000,000 REIfE 1872 EER - 100 EREHRITE
Man Yue Jewelry (Factory) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares Diamond trading
Limited of HK$1 each and polishing
Master Gold Development EBRIHE 1REE 1 E T2 SRk - 100 REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BARER/ RAREL
ML/ BRTRAEE READM
BRRLEY Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
s registration registered/issued BE ik FTEEH
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
RERAMBRAR £ 600,000 XA (E 10 TT.2 &k 100 - RERR
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Hong Kong 600,000 ordinary shares Investment halding
Factory Limited of HK$10 each
BAER (BM)BRAR? e B#IR711,000,000%7T - 100 EREHRITE
Mainland China Paid up capital Diamond trading
of HK$11,000,000 and polishing
Bt ERRARAR &b 117,000,000 BE{E0.1 BT BBk 100 - RE AR
Optik Technologies Limited Hong Kong 117,000,000 ordinary shares Providing information
of HK$0.1 each technology
services
Patford Company Limited &k 100 fREIE 100 B2 LB - 100 nERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
Realford Company Limited ¥ 100 fREE 10078 7T Tk - 100 ESE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
Vieway Investments Group EBRAHE 2MREE 1 FT e ERR 100 - RAER
Limited British Virgin Islands 2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
EBMEEREERAA &R 78,000 REE 1 BTz Lk - 100 REBR, /R ERS
Wilber Corporate Hong Kong 78,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 Investment holding/
Services Limited providing
corporate
services
Yett Holdings Limited RBRIHS 100 RAE 1 £ T2 SRR 100 - RAZR
British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Investment holding

of US$1 each
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BfRER/ RARELS
ML/ BERTRAEE BHEMN
BakEEnd Nominal value of ~ Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
] registration registered/issued B itz FEER
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
ExAEREOIM) BRAR  HE B8R4 6,087,638 T - 100 RS BT
Mainland China  Paid up capital of HK$6,087,638 Providing
subcontracting
services
Precious Palace International EERZES 1 REE 1 ET 2 LRk - 100 REHEK
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
ERREARAR A 1REE BT SRR - 100 NERE
Well Friendship Investment Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Property investment
Limited
8 R BRI B E R o # Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the Mainland
China

* FmBEEHESEITHAE
BEFENTT 2 EMERKE R F
T o IEREYE BRI IT R
Z KB AR A EFEABRAON
AREEEEFERTES%

EERA - ERIRARR]ZH
BRARNERZEANFE ZREA
SRR KB EEFEZ BARE
7o BEERRRUEMKEAT
ZHBREERRRANIIE

* Not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong or other Grant
Thornton International member firms. The aggregate net assets
of these subsidiaries not audited by Grant Thornton amounted to
approximately 5% of the Group's total net assets.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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T+ -REBENR 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
REE RAF]
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FAETT FET FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000
JE LTI « #AKAS Unlisted shares, at cost = = 9,385 9,387
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 6,719 6,949 = =
VERERE L Provision for impairment (3,898) (3,898) (9,385) (9,387)
2,821 3,051 - -
AN =73 Balances with associates
REE PN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FET FBT FAET
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
UL N aIZIE  Due from associates 1,461 1,589 8 8
S E B Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259) = =
202 330 8 8
JESEE = /A AT Due to associates (335) (288) - -
HEZZZFR-ZFZENFS There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of
A= B L% FE 30 U e amount due from associates during the years ended 30 June
NRAFIEREEEZS) - 2010 and 2009.
FBHE N A 2 SRV EERR - & The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free
B RRBAREEER - and repayable on demand.
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group’s
associates extracted from their management accounts are

as follows:
2010 2009
FET TFrET
HK$’'000 HK$°000
BERE Total assets 24,385 22,996
BB Total liabilities (20,923) (18,118)
Yoz Revenue 19,419 17,296
FAEE Loss for the year (1,539) (911)
RZZE—ZTFA=+H £ZE Particulars of the principal associates as at 30 June 2010 are
kNG =2 (U as follows:
BamER/ Rl Ay
ERARAEE BERGERy  AREEAMGERADL
Nominal value of Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
8 paid-up registered/ registration ownership interest IEEH
Name issued share capital and operations attributable to the Group  Principal activities
EEEHESHRRAF BARAARE9,003,2447 i 36 RERHRERIE
General Jewellery (Shanghai) Paid up capital of RMB9,093,244  Mainland China Jewellery manufacturing
Company Limited* and wholesaling
EAE B HHARAR 1000/ BB AT, SRR B 50 BB RS
Real Jewellery Limited* 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Hong Kong Jewellery manufacturing

* FRBEHEGTEEE
BEFEITZ EMERKE A F
=8

EERA - LRINTARR]ZH
BRBNEEREARFTE RN
BRE 2 FERAR A EE B
e NP EEFEIBRED °
EERRRHEEMBERR ZF
BReERFEENTTE

* Not audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong or other Grant
Thornton International member firms.

The above table lists the associates of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the share
of associates’ results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the share of net assets of the associates by the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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FElEHEREZ 20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

[
=
e
z|~)l=l=

ENTITIES

AEE

Group
2010 2009
FET FEr
HK$°000 HK$'000
BILEEFE Share of net assets 64,666 10,082
B HEHEE 2EF  Loans to jointly controlled entities 255,800 217,970
320,466 228,052
B ORERE Less: Provision for impairment = (11,670)
320,466 216,382
HEESEEER 2 REE The movement in impairment losses in respect of the loans
TEQDT : to jointly controlled entities during the year was as follows:
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REY 2 EREE Balance at beginning of the year 11,670 11,670
i 5H Amount written off (11,670) =
RERZ EREE Balance at end of the year - 11,670
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Tt REREZEHERZ 20.
R #)

BT HEEGERZ BERER
2B RBAREERER

+—EAREE -

the reporting date.

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

The loans to jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within twelve months from

REE

Group
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEU — R HEEEFIE Due from a jointly controlled entity 110 =
FE RS B BEFIE Due to jointly controlled entities (5) =
HENEGIE RS 2 AR TR - The balances with jointly controlled entities are unsecured,

B E RN EAREEERE - interest-free and repayable on demand.

R-Z2-2EAA=1A T
SREHER BB -

Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities as at 30
June 2010 are as follows:

Bl iAN
BRREEHE  ARERGFEREEIM
BRITRAEE Place of incorporation/ Percentage of

£ Nominal value of registration ownership interest TEEH
Name issued share capital and operations attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments S0000EE 1 T LR  REERES 50 REER

Limited 50,000 ordinary shares British Virgin Islands Investment holding

of US$1 each

Multi-Minerals Limited 10,000 REE 1 B2 &R B 50 BRES

10,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong Trading of mineral ores

of HK$1 each
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"+ RiEREHERZ 20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

A ) ENTITIES (continued)
B AREBGEMBRE Z A The aggregate amounts relating to the jointly controlled
S E R RE ) E S 2 BRI entities attributable to the Group that have been included
T in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are as

follows:

2010 2009
FET FEIT
HK$000 HK$°000
EMBNEE Non-current assets 316,361 218,013
M EE Current assets 54,661 3,170
371,022 221,183
ERBAG Non-current liabilities (280,410) (206,300)
MENE & Current liabilities (25,946) (4,801)
(306,356) (211,101)
BEFE Net assets 64,666 10,082
A Income 89,401 11,708
FX Expenses (36,580) (6,236)
FRHEF Profit for the year 52,821 5,472
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A ;’1#5&.'%2:%5%? 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
z3

ASSETS
REE
Group
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’'000 HK$°000
EWRRAIEE - ZATE « Listed equity investments, at fair value:
BB Hong Kong 23,393 8,012
HAh i [= Elsewhere 1,166 731
24,559 8,743
FEETIREAIEE » AN *  Unlisted equity investments, at cost* 11,339 11,339
AR Provision for impairment (7,108) (7,108)
4,231 4,231
#Et Total 28,790 12,974
FHREZHE Market value of listed investments 24,559 8,743
& ZEIE EIRARZE TR AR z The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less provision

B ERBIIN - AAZER
BYENEEMSRE - B
RE - REFRLTEAKREZ

FRE(EEE N FERS -

HE-T-FFR-FTNEAN

A=t B IR FERERELE

fair value.

for impairment as they do not have quoted market prices in an
active market. The directors are of the opinion that the carrying
amounts of the unlisted equity investments approximate their

There was no movement in provision for impairment during
the years ended 30 June 2010 and 2009.
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“+ = REIEWEIE 22. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES
rEE ARF
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
#t  FET F/ETT FET FET

EHRE Promissory notes €) 11,449 12,754 5,743 6,701
H o= B R IGEIR Other long term receivables (b) 3,167 24,727 = =
14,616 37,481 5,743 6,701
BUERE Provision for impairment (14,616) (36,176) (5.743) (5,743)
- 1,305 - 958
DERRDEE Amount repayable within
AR —FRER one year classified as
ZFUA current assets - (1,305) = (958)
@ RZE—ZFA=1H (@) Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000
A 811,449,000/ T( = as at 30 June 2010 (2009: HK$12,754,000),
T L N4 ¢ 12,754,000/ HK$7,828,000 (2009: HK$9,133,000) is secured,
U)X EAEERS - A interest-free and repayable by 15 annual instalments
7,828,000 L (ZZEZ h commencing on 1 October 2001. The remaining
%:9,133,000 8 7T) AEE balance of HK$3,621,000 (2009: HK$3,621,000) is
e RERAR-TE— unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 13 annual
FrA—BESTRFE instalments commencing on 15 March 2003.

# o H#3,621,000 /& T
(ZZZTNE:3,621,00058
JL) AEIEAE - BB R/AR
—EE=F=A+HER
D= FE#E o
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==

- REIEWEIE (2)

by RZE—ZFTFAA=+
= ugﬁ/nﬁ%tﬁﬁ%*
MESXKEARZ —E
3,167,000 L (=== 11,
£:3,167,000/87C) ZIRE
B ZBEHBEARE -
AN AN T — R F
NA=THEZ UAKk—
HEBETL(ZEZTNLF:
21,560,000/ 7T ) 2 & 5
FEWGRIE BR%E - ZIARAEE
FE6% @ BEFWER-
ZENF=A=+—"HE
B oENEELNZEFE
WHIEZ THEERAZ &
ES 7 ﬁi&%tk RIE 2 E
HEHZ-_TZTAF A
:+H¢¢FEE/% B8
FEDFE AR ABEINGRIA °

R FIRRERE R 2 ZEn
T

22. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) As at 30 June 2010, the balance represents a
shareholder’s loan of HK$3,167,000 (2009:
HK$3,167,000) advanced to an investee company
which is interest-free, unsecured and repayable on 30
June 2015 and a trade receivable balance of nil (2009:
HK$21,560,000), which was interest bearing at 6%
per annum, unsecured and repayable on 31 March
2009. In the view of the uncertainty of the repayment
of the aforesaid trade receivables, the directors were
of the opinion that the said sum was classified as long
term receivables despite the maturity date of the said
sum was expired during the year ended 30 June 2009.

Movements for impairment provision of long term
receivables were as follows:

rEE NN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FAET FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
REY 2 EREE Balance at beginning
of the year 36,176 27,727 5,743 1,000
BHERRERBE Impairment losses recognised - 8,449 - 4,743
R Amount written off (21,560) = = =
RERZ 458 Balance at end of the year 14,616 36,176 5,743 5,743




Annual Report 2010 3§
Notes to the Financial Statements m 81 7% 3R &5 [i:E

For the year ended 30 June 2010
HE-_Z-ZFA=1THILFE

—t+=-FE 23. INVENTORIES

rEE

Group
2010 2009
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
R % Raw materials 120,123 143,048
2K Work in progress 5,459 10,640
B om Finished goods 150,379 141,804
275,961 295,492

—+m - B 5EINEIE 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

rEH

Group
2010 2009
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 e GRIE Trade receivables 140,447 134,932
B RN R IE R E R Less: provision for impairment of receivables (27,072) (27,990)
B ZEWRIE — 58 Trade receivables — net 113,375 106,942
REE—RERBITEBEIRER The Group normally applies credit terms to its customers
BEPZEE BN REEF according to industry practice together with consideration
HRET R ZEERR - 8% of their creditability, repayment history and years of
EFHERREER - ASER establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
TF 360 R (B33 P WK I8 4 FF R AR limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
Vel o MEAFIEE SR EREE outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly

HRMEATERB o reviewed by senior management.
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—+m - &S EWERIE =) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
REER @ EEwRRBE An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
britE12E 5 EWGRTE Z BRIk at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of
Hran the sale, is as follows:

rEE

Group
2010 2009
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0—30H 0 — 30 days 48,509 40,389
31—60H 31 - 60 days 39,402 40,412
61—90H 61 —90 days 17,772 19,709
91 HIAE Over 91 days 7,692 6,432
113,375 106,942

AR AEEAZHEF 7 AN
REH B ZRUGIRMS -
VEEHEERR -

B 5 EMGRIA 2 BE R R A
fRiRACE - BRIEAEERSFEK
THATIE 2 e BSE - FEUEER
T REBRENEZEKFE
BEEMEE - BB RUGIRRER

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers
which are internationally dispersed.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the provision for

2 BEEINT impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

rEE

Group
2010 2009
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REZ 458 Balance at beginning of the year 27,989 27,083
BRERRERBE Impairment losses recognised 668 3,205
R Amount written off (1,585) (2,298)
RERZ A Balance at end of the year 27,072 27,990
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“+m - BSEWRIEE) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

REFEER  NEBEZEFEK At each reporting date, the Group’s trade receivables were
RIBE R R R EEEEE TR individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
& - [ERIEIE 2 E 5 e IE R individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
MR kBN R B AR that were in default or delinquency in payments.
REBREER 2B S EWIE The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables as at
i B IR B 1R 2 BRER the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,
Mo is as follows:
rEEH
Group
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AR H R AR E Neither past due nor impaired 92,016 79,069
#®HI0—30H 0 - 30 days past due 14,186 14,927
#HI31—60H 31 - 60 days past due 2,953 5,888
#HI61—90 B 61 — 90 days past due 1,776 1,583
#8391 —180 H 91 - 180 days past due 1,156 3,237
#Hi181—360 H 181 — 360 days past due 1,277 2,216
#HI360 HIA Over 360 days past due 11 22
113,375 106,942
BEEE s B sl E 2 B 5 FEUGRIE Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
B3R T HA R KGR 8 2 B P relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
B - there was no recent history of default.
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“+m - BSEWRIEE) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

[=2)

EEHEEREE 5B INFIA
BEZEREFEM  ZEEFPEAR
KB EERERRL - RIFBHE
K BRBERR  ZEEH%D
FELBERRE  AREEEXR
WEREAEE) - BERIRRIE
A EEURE o 75K B30 8
K ERE 2 B 2 R RR A
(ESCIER AL

BHRUGRIEBREIEE - Hit
EERREERESRIIALZ
REEEEQFERS

“+HRE U AFEFANE

HMZEMEE

25.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group did
not hold any collateral in respect of trade receivables that
are past due but not impaired.

Trade receivables are short term in nature and hence the
directors consider the carrying amount of trade receivables
approximates its fair value at the reporting date.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

At
Group
2010 2009
FET TrET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB LETRAES Listed equity securities in Hong Kong,
BmE at market value 11,517 10,324

A EHABRZ SHEER
FARSRERNELE R —
AR REEESEE A

e

UNAHEFABRSRZEREER
FEEFFT ABRRA 2 EMBE
BRI °

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within the section on operating activities as part
of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other operating expense in
profit or loss.
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“t+A BHERREEHR 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REMREFEBEATED ¢

Cash and cash equivalents include the following
components:

REH RAF]
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

FETT FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000

W& NIRTT4AS Cash and bank balances 84,940 45,759 83 85
52 BAE BT 5K Short term time deposits 69,000 - = -
153,940 45,759 83 85

RITHSRBE RRITERAE
REUZENFIE. -

RZZE-—ZTFXA=1tH &
HEMERTFRNERT Lk
BRE BRI R XA FE
B.0.7% FERAME - ZIH A S
B WHEEETWERRE — BT
SRR Z AR B RO BT HE T BIAS B
HeRZZEENFARA=TAH -
R SR (B 3 AT (AT 52 HATE HATF AR

AEBBRS RBTEHRBER
FEZSRITIEBUAA RE ST E
22,384,000 L (=T NF ¢
6,767,000/ 7T ) SR1T &k A
RETT BB AIE o BEEREIN
B & I G B R A5 B - S 08 IR AT
BIEMRTE - ASE N RBESE
FIRINE X7 2 SRITHEITINEZE
ﬁ% o

EERR - ANEREEEAMRN
EETREMEAER - BEHT
R A FEERAELEEAE
B o

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

As at 30 June 2010, short term time deposits were placed
with the banks and earned interest at the respective short
term bank deposit rates at 0.7% per annum. They had a
maturity for two weeks and were eligible for immediate
cancellation without receiving any interest for the last
deposit period. As at 30 June 2009, the Group did not have
any short term time deposits.

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$2,384,000 (2009: HK$6,767,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The directors consider that the fair value of the short term
deposits is not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the short maturity period on its
inception.

~
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“t+t -BSEMRE 27.

REER - BHRNFIRZRE

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting

DATEAR - date is as follows:
REE
Group
2010 2009
FET FEIT
HK$000 HK$'000
0—30H 0 — 30 days 55,941 125,589
31—60H 31 -60 days 28,302 19,632
61—90H 61— 90 days 27,188 9,201
91 B £ Over 91 days 36,214 2,720
147,645 157,142
“+II\fTEERI A 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
AEH
Group
2010 2009
FET FEIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
RHIEMEES X (s (a)) Forward currency contracts (note (a)) 498 170
Hiat - Notes:

() ZEHEESONUEE(ZZETA
F AT (inT))) &HE -
FAMAIR—F(ZFETNF:
DR—4F) ©

(a) The forward currency contracts are de

nominated in British

Pounds (2009: Canadian dollars (“CAD")) and maturity in less

than one year (2009: less than one year).
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“+ 4 RITER - FIKF 29. BANK LOANS, SECURED

REE
Group
2010 2009
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RITER— M Bank loans, secured:
AR—FNER Repayable within one year 167,500 141,633
ARE_FEE Repayable in the second year 11,494 176,189
BRE=FZFRF Repayable in the third to fifth years,
ER(BEEEMT) inclusive = 37,808
ARAFRER Repayable beyond five years - 327,266
178,994 682,896
B BAAREEEN —  Less: Current portion due within one year
FREER 2 BIERER included under current liabilities (167,500) (141,633)
BIIASERBI ARG Non-current portion included under
JERNERER non-current liabilities 11,494 541,263

R-ZE—ZFFA=1+H K&

At 30 June 2010, the Group’s banking facilities were

B 2 RITERBA A THERER secured by the followings:

@ AEBKREMELETHE (@) legal charges over the Group's investment properties
BT FEF AT and certain of the leasehold land and buildings; and
)53

(b) ARRMELZ RAER - (b)  corporate guarantees executed by the Company.

O
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RZBZAERA=TRH  *&%
B2 RITE R HIA TERER -

@ JIRFIEHEZEERT
REYMEES WA ZHEE -

() AEEISFHIELEZE
ERNREWME £TH
ELHMEFTUARERSD
WMEZEERE &

@ ARFEHWEHZRAER -

AEEBEBABTAHEZRITE
RZEBFE R EB25%F
259% (ZZZTNF :0.65% =
6.30%) - ARBEIRITERZE
FEFFZEA599% £6.15% (=
ZTNF  6.08% £ 7.88%) °

R EE

ERAEER  THERBA
BHEBEFRK T —EARE

7% 5
°1:|H

29.

30.

BANK LOANS, SECURED (continued)

At 30 June 2009, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by the followings:

(@) assignment of rental income of the investment
properties under assets classified as held for sale;

(b) legal charges over the Group’s investment properties
under assets classified as held for sale, certain of the
leasehold land and buildings and properties under
development; and

(c)  corporate guarantees executed by the Company.

The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ have
floating interest rates ranging from 2.55% to 2.59% (2009:
0.65% to 6.30%) per annum. The RMB bank loans have
fixed interest rates ranging from 5.99% to 6.15% (2009:
6.08% to 7.88%) per annum.

LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The loans are unsecured, interest-free and not repayable
within the next twelve months from the reporting date.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of loans
from non-controlling interests approximate their fair value.
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=+— - KRR EE 31. PROMISSORY NOTE

RZZEZENFLAZ+T=H"
&£ E[A) Brilliant Top Properties
Limited([ & 77 ]) & 17T KX &
#50,000,000/% T 2 & X =
% {EA U EE Precious Palace
International Limited & EpffE
A\ Well Friendship Investment
Limited (%78 [ Precious Group )
B2 EpE s 2 B RE (GFIEE
MR +—) o &N ERER
- ZEER=EAEBRITE
ERBEZHEGFE  RR=ZF
——F=A=-+—B%H-

HE-Z-BFAA=TALE
¥ - AREEEEREREER
TES

On 22 September 2008, the Group issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to Brilliant
Top Properties Limited (the “Vendor”) as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the entire equity interest
in Precious Palace International Limited and its subsidiary,
Well Friendship Investment Limited (collectively the
“Precious Group”) as detailed in note 41. The promissory
note was unsecured, interest-bearing at rate equal to three
months of Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”) and
matured on 21 March 2011.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group has fully
settled the outstanding promissory note.

REE

Group
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REYZ REFE Net carrying amount at beginning of the year 42,000 -

R HERR B BR Carrying amount at the date

AREE of initial recognition — 50,000
BE Repayments (42,000) (8,000)
RELRZRAFE Net carrying amount at end of the year - 42,000

=+ EBARKERRE

;IR

AR REER - 22 RBAR
MEBRIARTZEARNE
2% o

32.

DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and not
repayable within the next twelve months from the reporting
date.
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EHE(EE) A ARRAE

33. DEFERRED TAX

The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the reporting and the movements during the

FERBEFE 2 #E) : current and prior years:
rEE Group
i
MEBIEE ERLYES ARG
Accelerated tax  Revaluation Provision for #st
depreciation of properties  receivables Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
RZTZNELA—R 2k Balance at 1 July 2008 3,295 63,677 (8,890) 58,082
NZFERER Charged to profit or
Bl loss for the year (3,279) (63,677) (327) (67,283)
RZZEENFAA=TARK Balance at 30 June 2009
“EENFLA-HZEHR and 1 July 2009 16 - (9,217) (9,201)
NZFERR Charged to profit or
s loss for the year = 1,090 = 1,090
R=Z-ZFRA=THZ#EE  Balance at 30 June 2010 16 1,090 (9,217) (8,111)
RERIAE E N AER A Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

BREERNPRBAREEGA
R B AR SH S B P S B R
—RISHRE T - TR BRI

T eBEFABERIFRE
E o YREEBBIRRKR AT

legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority.

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of

R financial position:

REE

Group
2010 2009
FET FEIT
HK$000 HK$'000
EIEFHIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 1,106 16
EEFIBE & Deferred tax assets (9,217) (9,217)
(8,111) (9,201)
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HE-_Z—ZF A=1THIFE
=+=-iBEFHE#) 33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
REE (&) Group (continued)

AN B £ 5 £ 1B 49 100,547,000
BIL(ZZZ L4 : 93,259,000
BIT) - ZERIB AT 8 5| Bz
”ﬁ}fﬁéz AR RFERTE &= A ©
REZERBARIB T AR B

Wﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁgpﬁﬁm‘u B 1t 7
ARZERIBRERASELEHEE
E o REVFAFIIE51,733,00078 7T
(ZZ=Z N5 : 48,136,000787T)
BT —F (BEZE) 2T
B BHZE IJHE HiREAFIER
4R B4

ADT
R=Z—BFAA=+H &2

_jfﬁﬁﬂéjiﬂiﬁéﬁ LXEFR TR
BE(CETAEFE 8)-

=+m- EIJZ%?#VEEH%%

EE/HY A

34,

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$ 100,547,000
(2009: HK$93,259,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$51,733,000 (2009: HK$48,136,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2014. Other unused tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Company

As at 30 June 2010, the Company did not have any
significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2009: Nil).

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE/LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH

EHEZEESR ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
FHzafE SALE
REE
Group
2010 2009
FET FEIL
HK$’000 HK$'000
TIERHEREZEBE Assets classified as held for sale:
KEWZE (MizE++ (b))  Investment properties (note 17(b)) = 838,000
Y| BIFEHEZBE Liabilities associated with assets
EEzaE classified as held for sale:
Hf eI RERTER  Other payables and accruals = (9,628)

RZZBEZNFSA=1+H A%
BEoBARELE 2 IREMEN
REE - WARBHEERS -

RZZTAEFENA=1TH &&
l“*ﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁj¢2&§¢%¥ﬁ'§
TH {8 838,000,000 /% 7T E {E A%
FTAREE —RIBITEE ZH
(FFE=FT1) ©

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s investment properties
which had been classified as held for sale are situated in
Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases.

As at 30 June 2009, the Group’s investment properties
which had been classified as held for sale with carrying
amount of HK$838,000,000 were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

w
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=45 8#ITRA 35. ISSUED CAPITAL
SREE01ET BREE0OET
ZERRYE ZEBREE
Number of Number of &5
fifs#  ordinary shares  ordinary shares Total
Notes  of HK$0.1 each  of HK$0.01 each  HK$'000
HERK Authorised:
RZBBNFAA=THRK At 30 June 2009
“ZTNFt+A—H and 1 July 2009 3,500,000,000 - 350,000

Rin 174 Share Subdivision (@ (3,500,000,000)  35,000,000,000 -

“Z-ZFA=1H At 30 June 2010 - 35,000,000,000 350,000

ERTRBERE Issued and fully paid:

RZZEZNE+A—R At 1 July 2008 279,800,031 - 27,980

PRURFEHTE 2 Rl E TR (D Shares issued upon

acquisition of subsidiaries (b) 33,030,303 - 3,303

RZBBNFAA=ZTHRK At 30 June 2009

“ZTNFLA-HA and 1 July 2009 312,830,334 - 31,283

Rin 174 Share Subdivision (@ (312,830,334)  3,128,303,340 -

R=Z2-ZFXA=tH At 30 June 2010 - 3128303340 31,283

izt - Notes:

@ RZZE—ZFMPA=+H &K (@) On 30 April 2010, the directors of the Company proposed that
NG & 3= 2 NG eNeE each of the existing issued and unissued shares of par value of
REMEIETHIRBEEETR HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company be subdivided
REITIRIDIF AR EAR0.01787T into ten shares of HK$0.01 each. Pursuant to the resolution
KRR D - BRER=F—F passed in an extraordinary general meeting held on 18 May
FRATNBRITHRRER 2010, each of the existing issued and unissued ordinary shares
AEBARRBER - AAAIR of par value of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
AR EREMBECIEBITHRER was subdivided into ten ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.
BOIRABITEBRIFART
% 0.01 BT AR @Ak o

by W-EENFALA=-+=—8" (b)  On 22 September 2008, the Company issued 33,030,303

KA A A R1.0858 7T (AR 15
Pr4RT) 2 EH& 317 33,030,303
B (B& D4R ) S AXEEO0.1
BT (R IFART) 2 Ei@Pk -
BEITHRRAD T 1E A UL S Precious
Group Z #8595 KRB (FEIB ST
Hrt—) -

(before Share Subdivision) ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
(before Share Subdivision) at the price of HK$1.08 per share
(before Share Subdivision). The issuance of the new shares
was used as part of the consideration for the acquisition of the
Precious Group as detailed in note 41.
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RE-F-

ZEXNA=THIFE

=+3x - A&

+

© R=ZTETEAF+—A=+=
A RARE—BBIE=FH
AN —RERZE  REAR
BER1.78 T (RHIFAA) R
B+ 51 21,764,705 A% 3 & 5@ A%
(RRDHFART) - FLBIKAR
BBRNEE s iﬁﬁzfénmz
HBHENHE=T () e
%ﬁ%‘@ﬁﬁ%i@ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁé:?—
TEXNA=+BREEHEN
k& B HIRTSERK o

E_tﬁinlL\HSL*E

RZZEZAFT_A@A - &
‘A A% BB Digichina Trading
Limited }2 Paramount Ability
Corporation ([E&f 1) (3B ABL
"k*?i) RIS PRTE ek - HER ?BZ
ZRER - URHEBER -
Eﬂi& AAARTS - a%fﬂ?%ﬁ&
LR R RIRBRE RBA
BEARHMIBEREREARFNE
BREBRE REE - REHE
BB 2 RIS - ARF]
RIB LG 1.725 8T (RO A
Al 2 BIR (KA ER R B
/386,250,000 7T) © MEEFS
B %1725,000,000 B E A &I JE
TR EE AR D (AR HFARAT) °

35.

36.

ISSUED CAPITAL (continued)

(0) On 23 November 2009, a subscription agreement was entered
between the Company and an independent third party which
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 21,764,705 (before
Share Subdivision) new ordinary shares at a subscription price of
HK$1.7 each (before Share Subdivision). The subscription of the
new ordinary shares will be completed upon the satisfaction of
the sales and purchase agreement as detailed in note 39(a). The
subscription of the abovementioned new ordinary shares was
not completed at 30 June 2010 and up to the date of approval
of the financial statements.

UNLISTED WARRANTS

On 4 December 2009, the Company entered into service
agreements (the “Service Agreements”) with Digichina
Trading Limited and Paramount Ability Corporation (the
“Consultants”), independent third parties, respectively to
engage them as consultants for the provision of business
development, strategies and advisory services including
seeking suitable business projects for the development or
diversification of the business of the Company and suitable
business partners/investors from China for the Company for
fund raising projects. Under each of the Service Agreements
with the Consultants, the Company agreed to issue to
each of them 25,000,000 units of unlisted warrants shares
(before Share Subdivision) (the “Unlisted Warrants”) at the
price of HK$1.725 per share (before Share Subdivision)
where in aggregate equivalent to a total principal amount
of HK$86,250,000.

(5]



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 75 3R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2010
HE-Z-ZFXA=THILFE

(=2}

=175~ ELHREREHE)

REHEBEBERITIELETR
BEZSsB(ZE—ZF— A
+NABH)BER EEFE
“+HEEA - SEMEARF
A HEBTEAE1.725
BT (R m AR ) 1T 8B R
K 4 %A25,875,0007 L ( & R
15,000,000 7 3F L= 77 78 Bk 4 &
(B #F 40 A ) ) & 3E L Th R AR
BRI AR E AR AEARE - BRIE
BEWaEK R TR (FFRME
=+N(a) c W EMEE L
RIENTERK - BB BRI TR
BAEEE25,875,000/8 72 3F F
TR 2 R R - FEE
M RIRE BN SRS - =T
—ZTFEA—BEEIELETRE
BEETZ2B(ZE—ZF—A
+AB)%=—+m@EA M AT
MER(REEEMA) - 8K
1.7257% 70 (BB IR 4BRT) SR A
RNAEFNEB - B0 RIEEHT
R R 2 R o

AN AR IE_ E T R AR RE
ZRFBEEREZ R - FHITIE
ETRIEE AR AEE 2
R 5 o B17IE L TR RRERE 2 T
REGTERETE SN HRELE
BIZE 2 SRABR D 245 ©

PITE FF LT AR AR RE 1T i A B A
BE o KRR EOBBHEFIE
EIRBERE AR AEE R
CEBBITARRE BRI -

36.

UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)

The Service Agreements shall come into force from the
date of the issue of the Unlisted Warrants on 18 January
2010 and shall continue for a period of twenty-four
months therefrom. Each of the Consultants undertakes
to the Company that they will not exercise any of the
subscription rights attached to the Unlisted Warrants
beyond the principal amount of HK$25,875,000,
equivalent to 15,000,000 units of Unlisted Warrants
(before Share Subdivision) at HK$1.725 per share (before
Share Subdivision), until and unless the satisfaction and
completion of the sale and purchase agreement as detailed
in note 39(a). If the aforesaid sale and purchase agreement
is not duly completed, the relevant Consultants’ rights to
exercise the Unlisted Warrants beyond the principal amount
of HK$25,875,000 shall lapse. The Unlisted Warrants
conferred the rights to subscribe for new ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$1.725 per share (before Share
Subdivision) for a period from 1 April 2010 to the day falling
twenty-four months after the date of issue of the Unlisted
Warrants on 18 January 2010 (both dates inclusive). Each
warrant carried the right to subscribe for one new share of
the Company.

The issue of the Unlisted Warrants is an equity-settled
transaction given that the Company granted Unlisted
Warrants as considerations for services rendered by the
Consultants. The recognition and measurement of the issue
of the Unlisted Warrants should follow HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment.

All the Unlisted Warrants will be settled in equity. The
Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the Unlisted Warrants other than by
issuing the Company’s ordinary shares.
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=475 > IEEHRIRESE 36. UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)

TRAMPEBEMZE ZA QA The following table discloses details of the Company’s

FEETRAREZELREBRESE Unlisted Warrants held by the Consultants and movement
B : in such holdings:

2010

FLEMAREZHE hniEFI9ITERE

Number Weighted average

of Unlisted Warrants exercise price

BT

HK$

RZZEZTNFELA—H Outstanding at 1 July 2009 N/A N/A

RTEE TEA TEA

B Granted 50,000,000 1.725

BRI AR T Adjusted upon Share
(I =+F(a)) Subdivision (note 35(a)) 448,554,912 0.173

RITIE Outstanding at 30 June 2010 498,554,912 0.173
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=47~ ELHRREE®  36. UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)
RARIFEEMRREZRITELN The exercisable periods of the Unlisted Warrants of the
™ Company are as follows:
2010
FEMRREZFHE INEFIITREE
Number Weighted average
of Unlisted Warrants exercise price
BT
HKS$
T Exercisable periods:
—E-TFWOA—HZE 1 April 2010 to
T —#—f++H 17 January 2012 299,132,948 0.173
—T-EFENA-HE 1 April 2010 to
—E——F—HA+tB* 17 January 2012* 199,421,964 0.173
* Z 5 IF £ RIRRE R X R R & The exercise of those unlisted warrants will be subject to the
BEEMAERZTK » FFIEERH completion of the sale and purchase agreement as detailed in

F=T@)

R-EBE—TFNA=1+HHEKRT
1 2 IF - AR R 2 kT 5
SR NAHERA 1 556 -

EER5 - BRERRBHAF
BEAA IR - Bt - ZRH
ZAHETIZERE LM REE
HRFERTE © IF MR BEE
M AFELF R B EEE

EAETE -

note 39(a).

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the
Unlisted Warrants outstanding as at 30 June 2010 is 1.55
years.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the
services provided by the Consultants cannot be reasonably
estimated. Therefore, the fair value of the services is
measured by reference to the fair value of the Unlisted
Warrants. The fair value of the Unlisted Warrants was
determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
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E+ 3EJ:TEHIL\511‘E“§(F) 36. UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)

TRHIE = Iﬁ‘tﬁﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁ‘téﬁ The following table lists the inputs to the Binomial Option
WAER - ARGTEREBE Pricing Model used for calculating the fair value of the
—ZERA :+E¢¢E?ﬁ‘ﬁ2 Unlisted Warrants granted during the year ended 30 June
FEETRBRER < AFE - 2010:
AR #24a B HA —2—Z2F—A+N\H
Date of start of services 18 January 2010
A fE (At #7480 AT) 3.45%87T
Share price (before Share Subdivision) HK$3.45
171 ME (R 4l AT) 1.725%7T
Exercise price (before Share Subdivision) HK$1.725
TaE R E (5L () 83.88%
Expected volatility (note (a)) 83.88%
FE_ETHRRRAERS < TRET A HA (I 5E (b)) 2F
Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants (note (b)) 2 years
B = (5T () 0.435%
Risk-free rate (note (c)) 0.435%
TRHARR B R 3.53%
Expected dividend yield 3.53%
Hiet - Notes:
(@ TEHIEE : SR ERERG LA (@)  Expected volatility: being the approximate historical volatility of
B EIRT BT M F AR R ERHD closing prices of the shares of the Company in the past 2 years
W (B R SRR o immediately before the date of start of services.
(b)  SELTRRRAERE ZTERTFHE : 3 (b)  Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants: being the effective life of
FHRRERE 2B REE - K the Unlisted Warrants estimated from the expected exercising
B TEERT TR R AR SR 2 bt © time frame.
(0 ERRAE : DERESINEE (c)  Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of Hong
R 2 BB - Kong Exchange Fund Note.
BE—_Z—ZEFA=1THILHF For the year ended 30 June 2010, HK$53,008,000 of share-
- Eﬁiﬁ*ﬂ#t M R AE R AE based compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
ZMHXTNTH;%?%F% 53,008,000 Unlisted Warrants has been recognised in profit or loss and
BILERER  HESED the corresponding amount of which has been credited to
ST AR F Hfﬁ B 75 DA B the warrant reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to
MENRS - A ERERER share-based payment transactions.
BfE-
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=+t #E 37. RESERVES

REH Group

RERERNEFREAREEHER The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
FASY SR ELRAERED) therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
FE5 - consolidated statement of changes in equity.

E i EARHE A 7 2 5o Other reserve represents the difference between the
%ﬁ?’iﬁﬁfiﬁZﬁ{“ﬁEﬁiﬁ"H&ﬁﬁ#ﬁ consideration paid for the additional interest in the
AR R e 2 AR & B TSR0 subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest’s share of the
KPR IERE Hxﬂx%f“;FEEZé{ assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
EEGECER - of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the

non-controlling interests.
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=+t FE&E = 37. RESERVES (continued)

VNN Company

ROEER  RBEE FUDREE

Share e Non-  REB&F
premium Warrant distributable ~ Retained st
account reserve reserve profits Total

FET FET FET FE FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZZ\FLA-B &R Balance at 1 July 2008 158,373 - 273606 160,941 592,920
T \FEINRERE Additional 2008 final dividend - = = (496) (496)
ZEENEEFHRE Interim 2009 dividend - - - (3,128) (3,128)
RSB BARRRTRA Shares isstied upon
(FfEEm+—) acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 41) 32,370 - - - 32,370
BREEAZRS Transactions with owners 32,370 = = (3,624) 28,746
REEMF Net profit for the year = = = 98,673 98,673
TEERANRLE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 98,673 98,673
BE=STNERERE Proposed final 2009 dividend
RERIRE and special dividend - = - (96,977) (96,977)
RZEENEAAZTAR Balance at 30 June 2009
“ETNEL AR iR and 1 July 2009 190,743 - 273,606 159,013 623,362
ZE2-TERHRS Interim 2010 dividend - - - (3,128) (3,128)
SARRAD SR 2 R Recognition of share-based
compensation - 53,008 - - 53,008
BEEAZRS Transactions with owners = 53,008 = (3,128) 49,880
KEEMT Net profit for the year = = = 61,276 61,276
TEE2ANELE Total comprehensive income
for the year = - = 61,276 61,276
BE-Z-SFRERE Proposed final 2010 dividend = = = (3,128) (3,128)
RZE-ZE B=THZER Balance at 30 June 2010 190,743 53,008 273,606 214,033 731,390
PRI DR FEEERN — NN ER The non-distributable reserve represents the premium
ARz EFREEBREK2.50% arising on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares
TCHIR Z0.108 JT BT E £ 2 4 of the Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in
f& o 1994,
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=)\ BRER

RABIFHIRTTE KA EH B A
$R{£512,000,000/8T(ZZEZ AN,
£ : 935,000,000/87T) Z R ©
RIEIER - (WIBFTRAEW DR E
B AATARERERITER
ZET -AEEH ARESER
BTIERIEREEEZEER
B0 - E I A D B R ER
AHE N EEIEL B -

=+ BARKE

R=Z-BFRA=TH &%
8 ARRE FIRER 2 AR

38.

39.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided guarantees amounting to
HK$512 million (2009: HK$935 million) with respect to
bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the guarantees, the
Company would be liable to pay the banks if the banks
are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting date, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee
contract has been made as the directors considered that it
was not probable that the repayment of the loans would be
in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2010, the Group/the Company had outstanding
capital commitments as follows:

HHE
REE RAF
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FHET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
DRT4{EAREMS ©  Contracted but not provided for:
YIE - = NERE  Property, plant and equipment 559 - = =
REWMEETH4  Properties under development
RERERRYE classified under investment
properties 29,981 3,414 - -
30,540 3,414 _ _

REXHEEEIN RZF—F
FARA=TH  XEERAEXRF
B AT EAHEIE -

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company also
had the following capital commitment as at 30 June 2010.
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(a

BAKE &)

R-2BAF+— A
—+H' X RQ A @&
Benefit Well Investments
Limited([Benefit Well])
(REBRZESEMK
SMZBRAT  AREE
BE2EHA) FIVEE
mE((EEHZELD - A
B Benefit Well U B&Big
Bonus Limited R EKE A
7] ([Big Bonus& & |) &
EBE BTN © Big Bonus
SEEZRPEEEHAK
LR BERE - IRIBE
EmELBBHAE=ZZEN
F+—A=+HZ2®@7RxH
m bl s eRE
#738,000,0007% 7t * #5
LA 2R € X {8 113,000,000
BILTREBBEITAREEE
325,000,000 J& Z A]
BREBEUARBITAE
300,000,000 7T & £
176,470,588 i 1X {8 % 11
(B Hr 48R ) E 1T -

Rz EWARA - EARS
BRIFRERNWE & E
X5 E—FHBERAR
BAIEA-T—ZTF—A
“THRRAZBEPHE -

RZE—ZTFAA=+H
PR T =
HY - AR QAR B U Big
Bonus & &

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a

On 20 November 2009, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (“S & P Agreement”)
with Benefit Well Investments Limited (”Benefit
Well”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and indirectly wholly-
owned by Mr. Chan, to acquire 100% of the issued
share capital of Big Bonus Limited and its subsidiaries
("Big Bonus Group”), which are principally engaged
in mining and exploration of mineral reserves in the
Mainland China, from Benefit Well. Pursuant to the
S & P Agreement and the supplemental agreement
dated 30 November 2009, the total consideration
for the aforesaid acquisition is HK$738,000,000
which is to be satisfied by cash consideration of
HK$113,000,000, issuance of convertible notes of
principal amount of HK$325,000,000 and issuance
of a total of 176,470,588 (before Share Subdivision)
consideration shares of principal amount of
HK$300,000,000.

The above transaction constituted a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. More details were disclosed in the
Company's circular dated 25 January 2010.

The acquisition of Big Bonus Group was not
completed at 30 June 2010 and up to the date of
approval of the financial statements.

[v¥)
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BAKRE &)

R—ZZE—FFA=H"
AAR—REEE2EWB
RAERERERA A
([ =B J)EiFamous Key
Holdings Limited ([ Famous
Key) (—KREER 2B
EFMKZZBERAA
AARRMITERRILE
BRI EE S -
A [l Famous Key Uy B8 &
# 2,239,873 fi% Macarthur
Minerals Limited ([MMS])
% 2 - X {8 47,800,000
hn 7t (48 & 1 58,100,000
B )e WA B - £
78 EMinMetals Mining
Corporation Limited
(TMinMetals]) (—KR&E
BEMKSZ 2 BRAT]
BN E=R)FINE R
EE sk LAMMinMetals
U 8% 3,144,654 B MM S i%
7 {84 11,000,000 A0
7t ( #8 & 52 81,600,000 7
TT) e MMS &— R MNE
REMEELFRSH LT
ZBMAR  HEBER
AN SR Kk A
EFp S 2 EEAHE -
EHRIEBETES LA
% 58,100,000 7T &
81,600,000 7 JT 2 AT 42 f%
SHRERRE7,800,0000
JC X 11,000,000 51 7T ( 5
B #8572 58,100,000 7 JT
%.81,600,0005 7T ) o L
AR R IRTEHAN T R
B GRERRHDBRRE
0.42 B 0317 » WHEAT
HEARRET RS EmE B 2
Ho RAEERR BI=Z
—ZF+A+=H" kit
RBPERR B RFERIRE
FERIRE EHEE -

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited
(“Trade Bloom"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Famous Key Holdings Limited
(“Famous Key”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and wholly-
owned by Mr. Chan, executive director of the
Company, to acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873
Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS”) shares from
Famous Key at a consideration of CAD7.8 million
(equivalent to HK$58.1 million). On the same
date, Trade Bloom also entered into another sale
and purchase agreement with MinMetals Mining
Corporation Limited (“MinMetals”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
an independent third party, to acquire 3,144,654
MMS shares from MinMetals at a consideration
of CAD11 million (equivalent to HK$81.6 million).
MMS is an Australian company listed on the TSX
Venture Exchange in Canada and its principal activity
is exploration and development of an area with
significant prospective iron-ore located in Western
Australia. The consideration of CAD7.8 million
and CAD11 million are satisfied by the issuance of
convertible notes of amount approximately equivalent
to HK$58.1 million and HK$81.6 million respectively.
The aforesaid convertible notes are expected to be
issued at a zero coupon rate and at a conversion price
of HK$0.42 per conversion share which will be mature
two years from the date of the issue. Subsequent
to reporting date, on 13 July 2010, the aforesaid
transaction is approved by the shareholders of the
Company in an extraordinary general meeting.
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AR EMMS I k% - A&
B EAMMSE B TRA 2
18.09% o

RiIEETRRA - BlX SEKA
TREIBERS - £—FFE
RARBARA/-_T—FFA
“t+RBZEEKPRE -

R-E—FFXA=+HEE
EHBHmAIL AEB . W
MMS18.09% f& Il K FE K ©

M+ EEHERH
() fEBHAEA

R-FBENEARNAZ=ZT
B AEBUKLEHREY
HEEEETOEAR
EHEZREYME(MEE
=+m) - AEELF RS
MEERFEANEF - WEH
HEESEFHAES -

TR BGEEEHE 2 RK
R PRI REERE R

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

Upon completion of the equity interests in MMS, the
Group will own 18.09% of the issued share capital in
MMS.

The above transaction constituted discloseable and
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. More
details were disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
25 June 2010.

The acquisition of 18.09% of the equity interests in
MMS was not completed at 30 June 2010 and up to
the date of approval of the financial statements.

40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) As lessor

At 30 June 2009, the Group leased its investment
properties classified as held for sale (note 34) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from two to five years. None of the
leases included contingent rentals.

Total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling

TERAEARR 0T were due as follows:
REE
Group
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FK Within one year - 9,935
FFEFRF In the second to fifth years,
(BiEEEME) inclusive — 550
- 10,485
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40. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b) Aslessee

The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements.
Leases (including contingent rental) are negotiated at
fixed rate or with reference to level of business and
terms ranging from one to three years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling were due as

MHEAHABR AN T - follows:
rEE
Group
2010 2009
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 6,012 4,857
FEEZFERF In the second to fifth years,
(BREEREMF) inclusive 1,652 3,856
7,664 8,713

T-FER-FENEANA

=18 ARTLEEMEEE
ezl

At 30 June 2010 and 2009, the Company did not have any
operating lease arrangements.
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KHE-T-TEAA=TAL
FIE - LEEENBAR -

R-BEAFAA=THLF
Z - WEEMB AR ZF BN
—FO

RZZEZNFLAMA A&
EERTERE S (—HAMRE
H2BER 2 AR FI N B IR
Wi NABBENEBRE
215,736,000 7% 7T W B Precious
Group Z 2 &P LA K Precious
Group BNEH 2R BRERER
A E049182,188,000/8 7T - (&
HMAEEZATARASINTE
VAl

i " & A 130,063,000 5

JC »

i, IRE1.08B T (DI 4H
A 2 ETEMBE A RER
#£1733,030,303 i (AX D
AT AN EEBR - A%
35,673,000 7T : M

i. AEBEREFBITAESRE
50,000,000 % JT 2 7# 5, 2=
% o

Precious Group = 2/t = )23
B ZRXZEARNRRBIREN
ZEZN\FNATSABRZK
RERAE FIEBER T\
FANA=+=HZ=K °

Bt ZEK EMARRIETIER
EXWBEEREERS - 5
ABERERARAARR-_FF
NENAZTERZBEXK -

There was no acquisition of subsidiaries during the year
ended 30 June 2010.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the details of the
acquisition of subsidiaries were as follows.

On 4 July 2008, the Group entered into a conditional
acquisition agreement with Mr. Chan, and the Vendor, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Chan, in relation to the
acquisition of the entire equity interest in the Precious
Group and repayment of an interest-free shareholder’s loan
owing to the Vendor by the Precious Group in the sum of
approximately HK$182,188,000 at a total consideration of
HK$215,736,000. The consideration was satisfied by the
Group to the Vendor by:

a cash consideration of HK$130,063,000;

i allotment and issue of 33,030,303 (before Share
Subdivision) ordinary shares of the Company to the
Vendor at $1.08 (before Share Subdivision) per share,
totalling HK$35,673,000; and

iii.  apromissory note issued by the Group in the principal
amount of HK$50,000,000 to the Vendor.

The Precious Group was principally engaged in properties
development and the transaction was completed on 22
September 2008 upon the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary general
meeting held on 16 September 2008.

The above transaction constituted a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction under the Listing
Rules. More details were disclosed in the Company’s circular
dated 27 August 2008.

~
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Precious Group FAUE B A& 5
BEMABZATEREZWE

(continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the Precious Group at the date of acquisition and the

RIARRABRE(ELA T ¢ corresponding carrying amounts immediately before the
acquisition were as follows:
WHESR 2
BRMEE
Acquiree’ s
~E carrying
Fair value amount
FET FAET
HK$000 HK$°000
BEEAPYE KE+R) Properties under development (note 15) 383,232 349,672
IR & RIRTT 4R Cash and bank balance 10 10
Hf e IEK st E R Other payables and accruals (6) (6)
RITER—FHEH Bank loans, secured (167,500) (167,500)
B EEFE Net assets acquired 215,736 182,176
WRELEZRS Net cash outflow arising
R FEE on the acquisition:
BEESRE Cash consideration paid (130,063)
BERERNB AR Cash and bank balances
& RIRITHEER in subsidiaries acquired 10
(130,053)
WHEE EFEFFIBEINNT Details of net assets acquired were as follows:
FAET
HK$°000
DIRET T2 EBERE Purchase consideration settled in cash 130,063
LABEITRRD St 2 BB B R{& Purchase consideration settled in issue of shares 35,673
NBATHE R BB 2 Purchase consideration settled
BERE in issue of promissory note 50,000
BUBEEFEZATFE  Fair value of net assets acquired (215,736)
EES Goodwiill _




Annual Report 2010 £ =§

Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R 25 [ ::

For the year ended 30 June 2010
T-EFNA=ZTALEFE

HE—

M+— -~ KEMMEB AR )

Precious GroupR—ZEZN\F 1,
A+ -—HE-_ZTZTAF/A
= tHHERAEE AR K E
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132,000/ 7T © K EEIEN =
ZZENFLA—HERTK ' A%
I 7 4 U 8 T S 61| 3 42 (T ] 42
&) J5F R Precious Group AU
BB B IR AT AR E A T RS s E F
FTEl - ZEBEEREHFAR
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41.

42,

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

The Precious Group contributed revenue of HK$164,000
and profit of approximately HK$132,000 to the Group for
the period from 22 September 2008 to 30 June 2009. If
the acquisition had been completed on 1 July 2008, there
would be no change to the Group'’s revenue and profit for
the year as the Precious Group did not derive any revenue or
profit before the acquisition. These pro forma information
were for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily
an indication of revenue and results of the Group that
actually would had been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 July 2008, nor were they intended to be a
projection of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
30 June 2010.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group disposed
of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Honest Joy Limited and
its subsidiary, Poly Jade Developments Limited, to an
independent third party, at a cash consideration of HK$1.

O
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EHEMBARRHERZEE

The net assets of the disposed subsidiaries at the date of

HEMT : disposal were as follows:
FET
HK$'000
BHEEEFE : Net assets disposed of:
He 4k Cash balances 2,000
THIA R Provision for tax (1,776)
DEIRRE R Minority interests (201)
AEEREE HEEEFE The Group's share of net assets disposed of 23
HERBARESE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (23)

BTN ASAARE -

RE

Consideration satisfied by:
Cash -

HREEMBRRZRENREE

B MHFESITT

The analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries was as follows:

FEITL

HK$°000

EERERERE Cash consideration received =

B HER &L Cash balances disposed of (2,000)
MHEWEBE AR ZIRE N Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

RS FRE 2 F5E in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (2,000)
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% 1+45,275,00087C( —EE
FLEE 4,849,000 7T ) 5
ERTETHERR 5
B P AR B BB N A
I PR ©
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FREEE A RIEEE 21,000
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group had the following related party transactions.

(a)

Subcontracting fees of HK$5,275,000 (2009:
HK$4,849,000) paid to certain associates. The
subcontracting fees are mutually negotiated between
the Group and the associates.

Sales of goods to associates of HK$21,000 (2009:
HK$151,000) were made during the year. The terms
are mutually negotiated between the Group and the
associates.

Interest expenses of HK$12,000 (2009: HK$562,000)
paid to the Vendor, a company wholly owned by Mr.
Chan. The interest expenses are charged at three
months of HIBOR as detailed in note 31.
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(continued)

(d) EBEBEABREF (d) Compensation of key management personnel
IIANEERARASZ 2 EE Included in employee benefit expenses are key
ERABRABETIE management personnel compensation and comprises
Al the following categories:

2010 2009

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

(&B%1)

(restated)

¥ R B2 A Short term employee benefits 8,985 26,651
BERg & 1 A Post-employment benefits 286 288
9,271 26,939

(e) EFUWEEBig Bonus &£E 2
HEERME=1T()°

f 2 = W 882,239,873
MMS B& 17 2 518 SR B o
=+7b) e

(@)  UeBEPrecious Group Z 515
M+ — o

(e) The proposed acquisition of Big Bonus Group as
detailed in note 39(a).

(f)  The proposed acquisition of 2,239,873 shares in MMS

as detailed in note 39(b).

(@) The acquisition of the Precious Group as detailed in
note 41.
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M+m-GReaRERER 44. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
Bt & STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group had the
B AEBETIEZRRER

R=F-FEXA=HALS
5

(@ BFBEREEREE
—EENFAA=+HL
FE[ZLA5,054,0008 LIRS
TAF o

R-ERAEAAZ+AILE
B AEEETIHFEFRER
5

(@) AOMfEEPO+—FEut - UBE
Precious Group Z S0 B E
(& 35,673,000 7T i 1B
LAE A% 1.08 78 T (Bt #7 48
B ) 2 {E#%%17 33,030,303
A& (B& 2 R 40 Al ) 2 )30
LBAR AT o

(b) ZAMFFEPY + —FFa - e
88 Precious Group Z %
BEREBREEITADE
50,000,000 7% 7T 2 4 H =
BE o

M+ - B %5 A b & 32 B

R RHBUR

AEENEIESHTABRERA
RE - REIEWFOR - KREZES
ERER BEZERWE  H
MR RERREEFR
BIRNHIA - BENRER
FEETER - SRITER - HELQ
A BE AR R HAREGIERE
faER - TTESRIE - BNRK
ERRABRBRARRE - 25
TR TAFBERRMERE -
HZER T AGERRR MR
BEZFEBABEREN T - &
EEeEt MERZFRR - A
FEIRAEERS M A R ETTEE TS
1

45.

following major non-cash transaction:

(@)  The purchase consideration of buildings was settled
by the deposits of HK$5,054,000 which had been
paid in year ended 30 June 2009.

During the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group had the
following major non-cash transaction:

(@) As detailed in note 41, part of the purchase
consideration of HK$35,673,000 in respect of the
acquisition of the Precious Group was satisfied
by the issue of 33,030,303 new ordinary shares
(before Share Subdivision) at HK$1.08 (before Share
Subdivision) each of the Company.

(b) As detailed in note 41, part of the purchase
consideration in respect of the acquisition of
the Precious Group was satisfied by the issue of
a promissory note with a principal amount of
HK$50,000,000.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, long term receivables, loans to jointly
controlled entities, trade receivables, other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank loans, balance with subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, derivative financial
instruments, amount due to ultimate holding company and
promissory note. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

w
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign currency risk
Group

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
the United Kingdom and the Mainland China with
most of the transactions denominated and settled in
HK$, United States dollars (“US$"”), British Pounds
and RMB respectively. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for the financial assets and financial
liabilities denominated in RMB, which is the functional
currencies of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
to which these transactions relate. The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arises
from certain financial instruments including available-
for-sale financial assets, long term receivables,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables and derivative financial instruments which
are denominated in US$, Euro, British Pounds, CAD
and Philippines Pesos. During the years, the Group
did not have foreign currency hedging policy but
the management continuously monitor the foreign
exchange exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s major
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies as at 30 June 2010 and
2009.
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ERBEER @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
IS E K (42) Market risk (continued)

() SMNEER (&)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

REE(E) Group (continued)
PAF A THIR
Expressed in HK$'000
FEE
ESH B ®E  NERT b
British Philippines
us$ Euro Pounds CAD Pesos
“ZE-ZH;A=TH  At30June 2010
EHEZEREE Available-for-sale financial assets 4,231 = = = 1,166
B S EMGIA Trade receivables 83,732 = 21,292 = =
RekBeEH Cash and cash equivalents 33,743 696 6,955 160 -
BHENFIE Trade payables (140,652) (1,483) (451) = =
fTESMTA Derivative financial instruments = = (498) = =
ZERFRRE Overall net exposure (18,946) (787) 27,298 160 1,166
ZEFNFARAZTH  At30June 2009
AHHEZEREE Available-for-sale financial assets 4,231 = = = 731
REEWFIE Long term receivables = - - 1,305 -
B S EHE Trade receivables 88,622 110 15,183 = =
BehBe%EH Cash and cash equivalents 16,193 1,416 9,346 144 =
BHENFIE Trade payables (156,996) - (132) - -
fTEERMTIA Derivative financial instruments = = = (170) -
BE SRR Overall net exposure (47,950) 1,526 24,397 1,279 731

Ul
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
miEE (&) Market risk (continued)
() SMNERESE(E) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
REE (&) Group (continued)
BRETTE B THE - K As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect
SEBEFETHABTZ any significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange
EXERTgELEFEFMER rates. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group'’s
HE) o EERE HEAH financial assets and liabilities denominated in US$
BEAEENUETINEZ S is disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
B EE M B EE W U sensitivity analysis does not give additional value
Eni ARERGEH in view of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$
ETLRBITZ EREFH exchange rates as at reporting date. The following
A MZEHRE ST table indicates the approximate change in the
EIRMEEINMEE - TRE Group's profit for the year and equity in response to
TAEEREEBAKBE reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
AR 7 ER AR B rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
HE) > MRS AEBZF the reporting date.
Ak ) B # 25 HH ER 2 R4V
2010 2009
N [ = |\ fEE
T/ R/
(TF%) HER (FF%) HER
Increase/ wAZ Increase/ AL
(Decrease) 7 (Decrease) FE
in foreign  Effect on in foreign  Effect on
exchange profit for ##  exchange  profit for gy
rates  the year Equity rates  the year Equity
FET FET T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
&R Euro +5% (39) (39) +5% 76 76
-5% 39 39 -5% (76) (76)
=3 British Pounds +5% 1,365 1,365 +5% 1,220 1,220
-5% (1,365) (1,365) -5% (1,220) (1,220)
MERTT CAD +5% 8 8 +5% 64 64
-5% (8) (8) -5% (64) (64)
FREHR Philippines Pesos +5% - 58 +5% - 37
-5% - (58) -5% - (37)
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BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Gk (&) Market risk (continued)
() SMNEESE(E) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
PN Company
AKAFIEEBBEUNE The Company was exposed to foreign currency risk
AT 25 2 KE R FRIE primarily through its long term receivables which were
A SN E 2 T%ZE denominated in CAD. The following table indicates
TARBIREERRBSE the approximate change in the Company’s profit for
Kﬂ 22 TERK S IR A RE the year and equity in response to reasonably possible
BE) AEESARAZE changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
Wmﬂ&% @ IR ZBA Company has significant exposure at the reporting
BE) o date.
2010 2009
IMNEER |\ i 2
t#/ R/
(TF#) HER (FF%) HER
Increase/ A Z Increase/ w2
(Decrease) -7 (Decrease) FE
in foreign  Effect on in foreign  Effect on
exchange profit for ¥ exchange  profit for Gy
rates  the year Equity rates  the year Equity
FET FET 8T 8T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
meR7T CAD +5% - - +5% 48 48
-5% - - -5% (48) (48)

FRED IR RINEE
ERBERLBEEME
o MAEEMEETIR

FIlh 2 BB E B E R h
SNEERNREANE T — &

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the reporting dates and that all other
variables remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign

FEZAERAREHE LS exchange rates over the period until the next annual
BEE) o reporting date.

RNEBHRTFEAR— The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
BEETEEINER R 2B been followed by the Group since prior years and are

R WRBLFERER

considered to be effective.

~
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market price (other
than changes in interest rate and foreign exchange
rate). The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities
which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, or available-for-sale. The board of directors
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arises. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk.



Annual Report 2010 £ =§

Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R 25 [ ::

For the year ended 30 June 2010
HE-_Z-ZFA=1THILFE

m+3 - B 75 E be & 12 B
ERBGR 2

miSER (F)
(i) RAEREZE (&)

RZE—ZFTF A=
B WEAER LA (T
%) 10% M BT A E 0 5 S
A 8l

- AEBEFRZEF
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Equity price risk (continued)

At 30 June 2010, if equity prices had increased/
(decreased) by 10% and all other variables were held
constant:

- the Group’s profit for the year would increase/
(decrease) by approximately HK$1,152,000
(2009: increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,032,000). This is mainly due to the
changes in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

- the Group’s equity other than retained profits
would increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$2,456,000 (2009: HK$874,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of listed equity
investments included in the Group’s available-
for-sale financial assets.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the price change had occurred at the reporting
dates and has been applied to the Group’s investment
on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

O
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group is exposed to interest rate risk primarily arising
from bank borrowings and promissory note. Majority
of the bank borrowings and the promissory note are
arranged at variable rates which expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rates and
repayment terms of the bank borrowings and the
promissory note outstanding at reporting dates are
disclosed in notes 29 and 31 respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arises.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
profit after tax for the year and retained earnings to a
change in interest rates of +100 basis point and -100
basis point (2009: +100 basis point and -100 basis
point) with effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculations are based on the Group’s bank balances,
interest bearing bank borrowings and promissory
note held at each reporting date which are subject
to variable interest rates. All other variables are held
constant.
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m—++ - B 7 B bk & 12 B 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
ERBR ) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

mismEkE (E) Market risk (continued)
(i) FYEE R () (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
= _EFA 100 B2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZZ N4 - 100&80)  (2009: 100 basis point) higher
FRLEFIEI, (8L ) Net profit for the year increase/(decrease) by 730 (5,116)
fisl A1) 2= P& 100 £ B If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZZTN4F - 100E2E)  (2009: 100 basis point) lower
FERNFF CFD),IEA Net profit for the year (decrease)/increase by (730) 5,116

A B F AR — T
E.@?TIJTH 8 Z UK - WR R

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been followed
by the Group since prior year are considered to be effective.

FERk Credit risk

EERBREESRTIAZRZHT
REERIBE R TR Z IRREITE

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation

Bff SAKERZMBERZ
[\ o W32 58 5 ReE s B EHE
FIMEEREREERTREN
A WIEI&$ GLEUEES]
ZEANEERBRAREEEAR
KEAR TZM%#R%%%%
FEENREERR - REEE
EREKE  aREEEETEER
FERERBR - WEHEERTE
KL B HER FEUGRIR
RTE o WA AREREEE
% B IRIB S EMFUR - ARERR
E R AU E SRR B R SR E
B At EFERRAEHE
BB BIEH R K EEEEER

Ao
PR

under the terms of the financial instruments and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s and the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations in relation
to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated and
the Company’s statements of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the senior management compiles
the credit and risk management policies, to approve credit
limits and to determine any debt recovery action on those
delinquent receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount for each individual account receivables
at each reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the board of directors considers that the Group’s credit risk
is effectively controlled and significantly reduced.
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
primarily attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries,
other receivables and contingent liabilities in relation to the
financial guarantee contracts as detailed in note 38 to the
financial statements.

The Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. Hence, it has no significant
concentration of credit risk by a single debtor.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as cash is
deposited in banks of high credit rating.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’ exposure
to credit risk arising from long term and trade receivables
are disclosed in notes 22 and 24 to the financial statements
respectively.

Save as the long term receivables as detailed in note 22(a),
none of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligation associated with its financial
liabilities. In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows in the short and long term. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.
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M+~ B 75 B b & 18 B 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REVE SRS (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
AEBEBEFEAR—EEST The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
MAESHR  WREZEBR prior years and are considered to have been effective in
BHEERBECRER ° managing liquidity risk.

REBIZEHORTBENKESR The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at

HEERzERmABENEISBEES the reporting date, based on the contracted undiscounted
O payments, was as follows:

REE Group

SRRITR

BeRz 1ER 1ELE

HE REREE B2

Total Within 1 More than

REE contractual year 1 year but

Carrying  undiscounted oron less than

amount cash flow demand 2 years

FEBT FET FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

RZZ—ZFH=1+H Asat30June2010

ETEEREE Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
EC AN Trade payables 147,645 147,645 147,645 -
H At ERFRIR K Other payables
BB and accruals 44,920 44,920 44,920 -
e E A RIFIR Due to associates 335 335 335 =
FET — IR Due to a jointly
EfeXA controlled entity 5 5 5 -
BIER—FER Bank loans, secured 178,994 185,144 172,744 12,400
JEEflER ST Loans from non-
controlling interests 1,125 1,125 - 1,125
e R A% Due to ultimate
NGIE O holding company 7,877 7,877 - 7,877
380,901 387,051 365,649 21,402
TTEEREAs . Derivative financial
liabilities:
fTESBMIE Derivative financial
instruments 498 498 498 -
381,399 387,549 366,147 21,402
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

m+AE -MFEERKREIEER
ERBGR 2

REBETEE ()

Liquidity risk (continued)

REH (Z) Group (continued)
BRI
Rene 1ERK 1EM £ 26N
B EEREE ESRNE EIRSF
Total Within 1 More than ~ More than
BEEE  contractual year  Tyearbut 2 yearsbut S E
Carrying undiscounted oron less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
FET FET FET FAT FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZAEFRA=TH Asat30June 2009
FirEEREs Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
BAER A Trade payables 157,142 157,142 157,142 = = =
HitEAFER Other payables
2R and accruals 62,883 62,883 62,883 - - -
EBEARE Due to associates 288 288 288 = = =
BIEF-F %fi?ﬁi Bank loans, secured 682,896 742,587 149,919 183,713 45,247 363,708
R EREN Loans from non-
controlling interests 1,125 1,125 - 1,125 - -
ERRE Promissory note 42,000 42,260 = 42,260 - -
946,334 1,006,285 370,232 227,098 45,247 363,708
BD|AREREZBE  Liabilities associated with
Bl Bk : assets classified as
held for sale:
Rt R &R Other payables
and accruals 9,628 9,628 9,628 - - -
955,962 1,015,913 379,860 227,098 45,247 363,708
fTESRas: Derivative financial
liabilities:
(TEemIA Derivative finandial
instruments 170 170 170 - - -
956,132 1,016,083 380,030 227,098 45,247 363,708
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

m+3 - B 75 E be & 12 B
ERBGR 2

mEE SR (E) Liquidity risk (continued)

KRAT(A) Company
BHRRITER
RERS 1FEAH
#EE REREE
Total Within 1
EREE contractual year
Carrying  undiscounted or on
amount cash flow demand
FET FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
R-ZZ—ZFXA=+H Asat30June 2010
HAbfESRIBREFTER  Other payables
and accruals 1,447 1,447 1,447
P 2 TS R Financial guarantee issued
BANERETE Maximum amount
guaranteed - 185,144 185,144
R=ZZBZAFARB=TH Asat30June 2009
HAbfENKRIBEREFTERM  Other payables
and accruals 879 879 879
P 2 TS HEIR Financial guarantee issued
BAEREE Maximum amount
guaranteed - 742,587 742,587

R RER 2 A FEFE

AEECRAB —_FTNF—H
—HAEM  BERBRBUBHRSE
A7 REEUBTAZHENR
HEOER] - ZFERSIA—ER
AATEREN=[E%E Y H
LA ER EMHEY AT S EIEL
BIMREE - AEECERBBY
BREERNE 7R ZER] 2B
3 Ee I St B A T

BN—EREZIILBHT -

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position

The Group adopted the amendments to HKFRS 7 Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments effective from
1 January 2009. These amendments introduce a three-
level hierarchy for fair value measurement disclosures and
additional disclosures about the relative reliability of fair
value measurements. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions in the amendments to HKFRS 7 and
accordingly, no comparatives for the hierarchy for fair value
measurement disclosures have been presented.

a
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position (continued)

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs
used in measuring the fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the instruments,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
form prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.
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M+~ B 75 B b & 18 B 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REERRRERZ AT EFT= Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
(& of financial position (continued)

RERE I BARR R NIE A FEE The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
EZERMEERAEBIEID R in the consolidated statement of financial position are
T2 A EZEE grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
E1E E2E ®E
Level 1 Level 2 Total
T/ 78T 78T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
(FizEa) (KtaEDb)

(note a) (note b)

AfEEZ SREE Available-for-sale financial assets

— BB Lz RAES — Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 23,393 - 23,393

— N T2 R E S — Equity securities listed in overseas 1,166 - 1,166

RHIEEE, &S Listed securities held for trading:

— BB L2 BARES — Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 11,517 = 11,517

TEERIA Derivative financial instruments = (498) (498)

36,076 (498) 35,578

ARt AT E 2 7 EMMEER The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose

1l B8 DA 2 3R 25 HA R #E b 3 2R of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the

5 o previous reporting periods.

Hiat Notes:

@@ ETRAFFZAFEIIES (@) Fair values of listed equity securities have been determined by
EREEHMBEABEEL reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting date and
B iR & B R BN E SN B e have been translated using the spot foreign currency rates at the
R (fHEE) © end of the reporting period where appropriate.

b)) TEEBIAEZAFENER (b)  Fair values of derivative financial instruments are measured using
EREMBSEUTAZREE quoted prices in active markets for similar instruments, or using
TE v S A ERN  EFRET valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
BEZH A AHEEXBEER indirectly based on observable market data.

AERMIZEUE -
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M+ - UEINTENE 46. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
MEEREGER AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
= The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company'’s
REERARAF H HERD financial assets and liabilities as recognised at reporting
%%ﬂﬁ?&ﬁiﬁﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁu dates may be categorised as follows. See notes 3.13 and
TH%E - 2R HFE3.13%3.20 4 3.20 for explanations about how the category of financial
BRI BM DA 2 instruments affects their subsequent measurement.
LHIBEEET= ©
REE PN
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FAET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
SREE Financial assets
FRBEE Non-current assets
AMHE SRIEE Available-for-sale
financial assets 28,790 12,974 - -
EF K EWGRIA Loans and receivables:
— BT A %UEE‘% — Loans to jointly
ZER controlled entities 255,800 206,300 = =
— FEURB B A RIFUE — Due from subsidiaries = = 361,199 344,394
284,590 219,274 361,199 344,394
MENEE Current assets
AAFEFABZRZ Financial assets at
TREE fair value through
profit or loss 11,517 10,324 - -
B M EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
— B HRKIA — Trade receivables 113,375 106,942 - -
— H b R GRIE — Other receivables 8,749 11,941 = =
—REEKGRIEZ — Current portion of
BIHAES 7 long term receivables - 1,305 - 958
— P A A EEIEE — Due from subsidiaries - - 141,317 134,525
— PR & A B 5RIE — Due from associates 202 330 8 8
— IR — Fﬁ/\HT %|Z8 - Due from a jointly
FKIA controlled entity 110 = = _
—BHeMReEH — Cash and cash
equivalents 153,940 45,759 83 85

287,893 176,601 141,408 135,576

572,483 395,875 502,607 479,970




Annual Report 2010 3§
Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R 25 [ ::

For the year ended 30 June 2010
HE-_Z-ZFA=1THILFE

M+ - UENSENE 46. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
®

MEERE B AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
N (continued)
REE VNN |
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009

THET THET FET THET
HK$°000  HK$'000 _ HK$’000 __ HK$'000

tRaE Financial liabilities
nREaE Current liabilities
IABSERR ARG T2 2 Financial liabilities
SHEE measured at
amortised cost:
— B S ENRIE — Trade payables (147,645) (157,142) = =
—HiENFIERETER - Other payables
and accruals (44,920) (62,883) (1,447) (879)
— B E N RIFIE — Due to associates (335) (288) = =
— P R — Due to a jointly
ERETUE controlled entity (5) - - -
—RITEFR—FEH — Bank loans, secured (167,500) (141,633) = =
A AFEFABR L Financial liabilities at
SREE fair value through
profit or loss:
—TESET A — Derivative financial
instruments (498) (170) - -
Y| BN E 2 B E Liabilities associated
BHzAE: with assets classified
as held for sale:
— EL At R R AT — Other payables
£R and accruals = (9,628) = =
(360,903) (371,744) (1,447) (879)
FREEE Non-current liabilities
LABESERN A GTE 2 Financial liabilities
SREE: measured at amortised
cost:
— A REER AT — Due to ultimate
KIE holding company (7,877) = = =
— SRR E R — Loans from non-
controlling interests (1,125) (1,125) - -
—RITEHR B HA — Bank loans, secured (11,494) (541,263) = =
—HEHER — Promissory note = (42,000) = =

(20,496) (584,383) = =

(381,399) (956,132) (1,447) (879)
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47.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less the sum of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group aims
to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and the
directors are of the opinion that the Group’s gearing ratio
was maintained at reasonable level at the reporting dates.
The gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as follows:

AMEEAGHLENT :
REE
Group
2010 2009
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$’000
TEIEE Current liabilities
RITER—HEM Bank loans, secured 167,500 141,633
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
FER S ARAZAR A Bl 5RIE Due to ultimate holding company 7,877 =
FEIEHI R R Loans from non-controlling interests 1,125 1,125
IRITE R —EHEA Bank loans, secured 11,494 541,263
HHER Promissory note - 42,000
[EvvEE Total debts 187,996 726,021
B RERREER Less: Cash and cash equivalents (153,940) (45,759)
EE=RE Net debts 34,056 680,262
R4 Total equity 1,006,426 1,045,901
EnBBERFaE Total equity and net debts 1,040,482 1,726,163
ERB B E Gearing ratio 3.3% 39.4%
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MEFHE PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY
R-ZE-—ZEFNA=1H as at 30 June 2010
BEWE INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REBEEGER

Attributable

B Jz2ReS FHHA interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
fEEE A 236-242 5% [EES gt 100%

236-242 Des Voeux Road Central Commercial Long
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the respective published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out as below. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

E RESULTS
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Yz Revenue 1,031,708 1,189,622 1,497,682 1,632,180 1,711,670
BRETETI AT ER Profit before income tax 11,189 71,142 101,073 259,794 71,379
FrisR (Fx), /8% Income tax (expense)/credit (7,684) 64,807 (13,985) (52,898) (16,324)
FRHF Profit for the year 3,505 135,949 87,088 206,896 55,055
R Non-controlling interests 217 (10) (3,611) (92,910) 4,518)

YN =DN Net profit attributable to the owners

eG4 T of the Company 3,722 135,939 83,477 113,986 50,537

EE e RFERER

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
T FET TET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BELE Total assets
BEEE Total liabilities
IiEIER Non-controlling interests

1,399,111 2,013,672 1,673,773 1,683,031 1,365,781

(392,685) (967,771) (795,200) (882,841) (620,872)

(1,057) (1,274) (1,865) (1,208) (42,828)

1,005,369 1,044,627 876,708 798,982 702,081
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